
City of Mora 
Kanabec County, Minnesota 

Meeting Agenda 
City Council 

Mora City Hall 
101 Lake St. S 

Mora, MN 55051 

Tuesday, April 18, 2023 6:30 PM Mora City Hall 

1. Call to Order/ Pledge of Allegiance
2. Roll Call
3. Adopt Agenda (No item of business shall be considered unless it appears on the agenda for the meeting. Council members may add 

items to the agenda prior to adoption of the agenda.) 
4. Consent Agenda (Those items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be acted upon by 

one motion under this agenda item. There will be no separate discussion of these items, unless a Council Member so requests, in which 
event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered immediately after the adoption of the consent agenda.) 
a. Regular Meeting Minutes – March 21, 2023
b. Work Session Meeting Minutes – March 21, 2023
c. Claims
d. Accept Restricted Donations Resolution No. 2023-421
e. Music in the Park Grant
f. Mobile Food Unit License – Thai 1 on Kitchen

5. Open Forum (Individuals may address the council about any item not contained on the regular agenda. There is a maximum of fifteen
(15)  minutes set aside for open forum. A maximum of three (3) minutes is allotted per person. The City Council will take no official action on 
items discussed at the forum, with the exception of referral to staff for future report.) 

6. Special Business
a. Housing and Redevelopment Authority Update – Jack L.
b. Professional Services – Civil Attorney – Natasha S.
c. Approve Transfers Noted Resolution No. 2023-422 – Kelly C.

7. Public Hearings
a. None

8. New Business
a. Harrison Property Offer – Caleb C.
b. Airport Taxi-lane Construction Bids – Joe K.
c. Airport Fuel Systems Upgrade – Joe K.
d. Dual Burial Cemetery Rate – Fee Schedule Amendment – Joe K.
e. Airport Runway TEMP Contract – Joe K.
f. Airport Runway Grant – Joe K.
g. Airport Taxilane Grant Application – Joe K.
h. Airport Fuel System Repair Contract SEH – Joe K.

9. Old Business
a. Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office Contract – Council Committee Member Appointment
b. Driver’s License Committee Follow-up – Mayor/Council Representative
c. 9th Street Highway 65 Turn Lane Update – Greg A. SEH

10. Communications
a. Quarterly Financial Report – 1st Quarter 2023 – Natasha S. / Kelly C.
b. KCSO Monthly Report – March 2023
c. MAFD Monthly Report – March 2023
d. Park Board Meeting Minutes
e. EDA Minutes – March 7 & 17



 
11. Boards and Commission Reports 

a. Councilmember Anderson 
b. Councilmember Broekemeier 
c. Councilmember Shepard 
d. Councilmember Youngquist 
e. Mayor Mathison 
f. City Administrator Report  

• E-mails 
• Employee Recognition Dinner 4/19 
• MAFD Water Tender  
• Roof Replacement 
• LMC Conference in June Early Bird Registration  

 

12.  Closed Session In accordance with Minn. Stat. § 13D.05; subd. 1(d), (3a), meetings having data 
classified as not public., what meetings may be closed allows the City Council to hold a closed session to 
evaluate employee performance Glenn  Anderson and long-term employment contract. 

 
13. Adjournment 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
March 21, 2023 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Mayor Jake Mathison called to order the regular meeting of the 
Mora City Council at 6:30 PM on Tuesday, March 21, 2023 in the City Hall council Chambers. 
 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 6:30PM 
 

2. Roll Call: Mayor Mathison, Councilmembers Jody Anderson, Kyle Shepard, Sadie Broekemeier 
and Dave Youngquist. 
 
Staff Present: Glenn Anderson City Administrator, Natasha Segelstrom Administrative Services 
Director, Joe Kohlgraf Public Works Director, Jeff Krie Parks and Recreation Coordinator, Mandi 
Yoder Human Resources, and Kelly Christianson Accountant. 
 

3. Adopt Agenda: Mathison requested the addition of item 9a Highway 65 Turn Lane Update to 
the agenda.  MOTION made by Anderson, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried to 
adopt the agenda as amended.  
 

4. Consent Agenda: MOTION made by Broekemeier, seconded by Youngquist, and carried to 
approve the consent agenda as presented. Anderson abstained 
 

a. Regular Meeting Minutes – February 21, 2023 
b. Claims February 2023  
c. Gambling Permit – MAFD Relief Association 
d. Special Event Permit – Snake River Canoe Race 
e. Restricted Donations – Resolution No. 2023-321  

 
5. Open Forum:  Jon Larson of the Vasaloppet thanked the City of Mora and staff for their 

assistance in the 2023 Vasaloppet and 1,400 skiers participated in the races over the weekend. 
The celebration tent hosted Bingo, beer and wine tasting and that he met with the Swedish 
Vasaloppet board in Sweden and the Swedish Press had written an article. 
 

6. Special Business 
a.    Affidavit – Conflicts of Interest: Segelstrom presented an affidavit and further explained 

that the interested council member must abstain from voting for any item that may be 
considered a conflict of interest. The affidavit would address conflicts for interested 
officials when approving claims and financial transactions 
 

b.    Annual Review City Administrator: On March 21st, Anderson reached one year of 
employment with the City of Mora. Per his employment contract, an annual review 
would be performed and consideration of probation release. Upon release, he would 
move to a paygrade 15, step G with an annual salary of $114,754 according to the 2023 
salary schedule. Mandi Yoder, Human Resources explained that Anderson’s review had 
been sent out the week prior and scored with comments. Broekemeier asked if 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
March 21, 2023 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Anderson’s performance was scored by staff. Yoder explained the review was 
completed by City Councilmembers and PUC commissioners and that only 5 of the 10 
reviews had been returned. She further explained some of the council members and 
commissioners abstained from the review process due to the length of time they had 
worked with Anderson.  
 
The Council discussed including staff input for future reviews due to the working 
relationship with the City Administrator. This would provide details of daily interactions 
with staff and recognized that staff had been part of the selection process. Yoder 
advised the council not to include all City staff as it may skew the review process and 
could possibly turn into retaliation when staff review their superiors. If staff were to be 
included in the future, it was recommended that department heads provide input since 
they work closely with the City Administrator and then have the Council complete the 
City Administrator’s annual review. Additional discussion took place on the review 
process and Broekemeier suggested Human Resources collect information over the next 
year to see how other cities conduct reviews for city administrators, department heads 
or other staff. Mathison added the Administrator could determine how staff reviews 
were conducted. The way the Council reviews the administrator and how the 
administrator reviews employees did not have to be the same. Youngquist stated he did 
not feel it was fair to provide a review of Anderson’s performance, as he had only been 
on the City Council for a few months and to complete a generic review was unfair to 
Anderson. Councilmember J. Anderson stated she had been waiting two months for an 
e-mail reply and had not received one.  
 
From the Human Resources perspective, Yoder explained that Glenn Anderson had 
taken a leadership approach over the past year, rather than his predecessor who had a 
management style. When hired, Anderson had been given direction to change and 
redirect staff and explained a change in culture takes time. Anderson’s interactions with 
department heads enable them to be confident in their decisions and has total support 
from the City Administrator. The culture and climate was slowly changing and it could 
take 1-5 years to see the change. Yoder noted that not everyone adjusts well to change. 
When asked the PUC’s recommendation on Anderson’s review, Yoder stated it was 
unanimous to release the probationary period and tabled the long-term contract.  
 
MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Broekemeier to approve the probation release 
and step increase of Glenn Anderson to paygrade 15, step G.  
 
Glenn Anderson asked the Council for consideration of a long-term contract and that it 
was brought forward to the Public Utilities Commission on March 20, 2023. The PUC 
directed Human Resources to collect the advantages and disadvantages of a long 
contract and the consideration had been tabled. Yoder explained a long term would 
secure employment and prevent recruitment from other cities and continue with the 
plan and vision the Council had for the City. MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by 
Broekemeier, and unanimously carried to table the long-term contract for the City 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
March 21, 2023 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Administrator until the advantages and disadvantages are brought forward from Human 
Resources and the Council would discuss at a later date.  
 

7. Public Hearings: There were no public hearings. 
 

8. New Business: 
a.    Fox Run Park Grant – Resolution No. 2023-322: Krie presented the grant application for 

the Fox Run Park Grant. MOTION made by Broekemeier, seconded by Shepard, and 
unanimously carried to approve the following resolution: 
      RESOLUTION NO. 2023-322 
          OUTDOOR RECREATION PARK GRANT 
                                                      (see attached) 

b.    Lease Accounting Policy- The Council approved the Lease Accounting Policy in response 
to the Annual Financial Reporting requirements and Lease Accounting implementation 
in response to GASB No. 87 compliance. The policy would assist in the identified a 
capitalization threshold of $25,000 and was based on the City’s Capital Asset Policy. 
MOTION was made by Shepard, seconded by Youngquist, and unanimously carried to 
approve the Lease Accounting Policy.  

c.    Human Resources Coordinator Exemption Status- City Administrator Anderson 
requested the Human Resources Coordinator job description change from Human 
Resources Coordinator to Human Resource Director and from a non-exempt hourly 
employee to exempt salaried employee. The Council discussed concern with the title 
change and that it may warrant a pay increase later. It was explained the title did not 
change the duties within the job description and further explained the benefit to the 
City by having the Fair Labor and Standards Act status to exempt salaried which would 
eliminate overtime / compensation time. MOTION made by Broekemeier, seconded by 
Youngquist, and unanimously carried to approve the Human Resources Director Job 
Description as presented and appoint Mandi Yoder the position. 

9. Old Business:  
a.    Highway 65 Turn Lane Update:  City engineer, Greg Anderson of SEH provided an update 

on the upcoming Local Partnership Program with the Minnesota Department of 
Transportation. He explained there would be changes to the length of the turn lane to 
satisfy the requirements for the project and there may be a special meeting to meet 
public notice requirements for the project. Greg Anderson also updated the council on 
his contracted engineering services for an upcoming development as previously 
discussed at the December 20, 2022, City Council meeting. 
 

10. Communications: 
The City Council reviewed the monthly communications. Segelstrom and Christianson presented 
the 4th Quarter 2022 financial statement and highlighted the City’s current investments and fund 
balances for the 4th Quarter of 2022. 

a.   Quarterly Financial Report 4th Quarter 2022  
b.   KCSO Monthly Report - January 2023  
c.   MAFD Monthly Report – January 2023 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
March 21, 2023 

Page 4 of 4 
 

d.   Public Works Report 2023 Vasaloppet Weekend 
 

11. Reports 
a.   City Administrator: Anderson provided an update on the Council Chambers camera and 

an update on the Minnesota Legislative session and funding for the Mora Lake Outlet 
Pipe. He stated that the Power Plant would be replacing batteries. The Kanabec County 
Sheriff’s Office was expected to have its Reporting Software Database with up-to-date 
counts by March 22, 2023.  

b.   Councilmember Anderson: Brought forward concern from the library board member and 
issues at the library and the Sheriff’s Office response. Krie stated the restrooms have 
been locked. Anderson had a concern with a possible homeless encampment on the 
Mora Lake island.  

c.   Councilmember Broekemeier: Commended the snow removal and the great work of the 
street crew.  

d.   Councilmember Shepard: Had a meeting with the local lakes and that the street crew 
have been doing a great job.  

e.   Councilmember Youngquist: Nothing new to report. 
f.   Mayor Mathison: Nothing new to report. 

 
12. Adjournment:  MOTION by Shepard, seconded by Anderson, and unanimously carried to 

adjourn the meeting at 7:43pm. 
 

 
_______________________________________ 
Mayor 

______________________________________ 
City Clerk 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
March 21, 2023 

 

Page 1 of 1  

 
 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Mayor Jake Mathison called to order the work session of the 
Mora City Council at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, March 21, 2023 in the City Hall council chambers. 

 
2. Roll Call: Present: Mayor Mathison, Councilmembers Anderson, Broekemeier, Shepard and 

Youngquist  
Absent: None 
Staff Present: City Administrator Glenn Anderson, Administrative Services Director Natasha 
Segelstrom, Public Works Director Joe Kohlgraf, Mandi Yoder Human Resources 

3. Special Business:  

a.    Legislative Orientation:  
 
Leah Koch and Joel Jamnick of Campbell Knutson and Mandi Yoder presented 
legislative orientation for elected officials. During the orientation Koch detailed the 
Open Meeting Law under Minnesota Office of Administration and Data Practices, and 
considerations taken for an emergency meeting. The council reviewed parliamentary 
procedure for meeting motions, resolutions, and ordinances and the requirements of 
the City Council. Koch provided a comprehensive explanation on data practices and 
record retention. She explained what could be subject to data requests, electronic 
communications, and serial meetings. Planning and zoning were reviewed, and land 
use was described as a Quasi-Judicial Process and when making decisions there must 
be impartiality and findings on fact.  

 

4. Adjournment: MOTION made by Broekemeier, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously 
carried by the City Council to adjourn at 6:10 p.m.  

 

 
Mayor                  City Clerk 

 

































Item No. 4d 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: March 21, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director 
RE: Accept Restricted Donations  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The City of Mora has received the following donations: 
 

DONATION RECEIVED FROM: DONATION OF: TERMS AND CONDITIONS OR 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:  

Mora Fire Relief 
Association 

Res-Q-Jack Super X Deluxe 4 Point Kit, 
Res-Q-Jack extension Tube 12”, 
Res-Q-Jack extension Tube 24”, 
Res-Q-Jack Super X Tripod head 
Res-Q-Jack Darlington Roll Head, 
 

Donation to the Mora Area Fire 
Department  

(valued at $20,320.46) 

Mora Fire Relief 
Association 

Survivor Alkaline Model Batteries (31) Donation to the Mora Area Fire 
Department  

(valued at $1858.45) 
  
As required by MN State Statute, restricted donations must be officially accepted by the City Council.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to accept donations by approving Resolution 2023-421 
 
 
Attachments 
Resolution 2023-421 



Resolution No. 2023-421 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA 
ACCEPTING RESTRICTED DONATIONS  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mora is generally authorized to accept donations of real and personal property 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 465.03 for the benefit of its citizens, and is specifically 
authorized to accept gifts. 
 
WHEREAS, the following persons and entities have offered to contribute the cash amounts set forth 
below to the city, and the terms or conditions of the donations, if any, are as follows: 
  

DONATION RECEIVED 
FROM: 

DONATION OF: TERMS AND CONDITIONS OR 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:  

Mora Fire Relief Association Res-Q-Jack Super X Deluxe 4 Point 
Kit, Res-Q-Jack extension Tube 12”, 
Res-Q-Jack extension Tube 24”, 
Res-Q-Jack Super X Tripod head 
Res-Q-Jack Darlington Roll Head, 
 

Donation to the Mora Area Fire 
Department  

(valued at $20,320.46) 

 
WHEREAS, all such donations have been contributed to the city for the benefit of its citizens, as allowed 
by law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is appropriate to accept the donations offered. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the City of Mora, Kanabec County, Minnesota 
that: 
 

1. The donations described above are accepted and shall be used to establish and/or operate 
services either alone or in cooperation with others, as allowed by law. 

2. The city clerk is hereby directed to issue receipts to each donor acknowledging the city’s 
receipt of the donor’s donation. 

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced and moved for adoption by Council Member _______________ 
and seconded by Council Member ____________________. 

 
Voting for the Resolution: .......................  
Voting Against the Resolution: ...............  
Abstained from Voting: ...........................  
Absent: ....................................................  

 
Motion carried and resolution adopted this 18th day of April 2023. 

 
  ______________________________________  
ATTEST:  Jake Mathison, Mayor  

 ______________________________________  
 Natasha Segelstrom, City Clerk 



Item No. 4e 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: April 18, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jeff Krie, Activities & Recreation Coordinator 
RE: Music in the Park ECRAC Grant 

SUMMARY 
The City has received a grant award from the East Central Regional Arts Council (ECRAC) for the City’s eleventh 
summer concert series, known as Mora’s Music in the Park. The City Council will consider accepting the grant, 
as well as entering into a license agreement with the American Society of Composers, Authors and Publishers 
(ASCAP), and the Society of European Stage Authors and Composers (SESAC). 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Park Board and staff have begun preparations for the upcoming season of Mora’s Music in the Park, which 
will include 11 Thursday evening concerts beginning in June through August, and one special event concert 
(part of Fall Fest on September 23) in Library Park. The twelve music performances will represent a wide 
variety of genres, will be appropriate for all ages, and will be open to the public free of charge. With a 
proposed project budget of $13,720, staff prepared and submitted a grant proposal to ECRAC in January for 
$10,868. The City recently received notice that the grant request was approved.  The grant start date is May 15, 
2023 so no monies can be distributed before then.   

The proposed project budget includes a local grant match of $2,852. This amount includes $1,452 of in-kind 
support and $1,400 from community contributions (aka, sponsors). If the City Council accepts the grant award, 
staff will begin work to secure all necessary contributions. 

If the City Council accepts the grant, staff is once again recommending that the City Council obtain permission to 
publicly perform copyrighted music via a license through ASCAP and SESAC. The ASCAP 2023 license fee is $420, 
the SESAC license fee is $553, and both have been included in the Music in the Park project budget.  

OPTIONS & IMPACTS 
1. Accept an $10,868 grant from ECRAC for the Mora’s Music in the Park summer concert series.

Further, grant authorization to enter into a license agreement with ASCAP for the period of June 1, 2023
to December 31, 2023 and submit the necessary license fee of $420. Also, to enter a license agreement
with SESAC for the period of January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023 and submit the necessary license 
fee of $553.

2. Decline an $10,868 grant from ECRAC for the Mora’s Music in the Park summer concert series. By
doing this the City would not have the funds necessary to secure artists and would not be able to move
forward with the concert series this year.

3. Take no action at this time. By doing this the City would forfeit an $10,868 grant from ECRAC, which may
jeopardize future grant requests.

RECOMMENDATIONS 



Motion to accept an $10,868 grant from ECRAC for the Mora’s Music in the Park summer concert series and 
to grant authorization to enter into a license agreement with ASCAP for $420 license fee and to SESAC for 
$553 license fee. 

 
 

Attachments 
None 







Item No. 6a 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date  April 18, 2023 
To  Mayor and City Council 
From  Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 

RE 
  Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director
  Housing and Redevelopment Authority Update  

SUMMARY 
Mora HRA Executive Director, Jack L’Heureux will provide an update to the Council on the HRA 
programs. 



Item No. 6b 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date April 18, 2023 
To Mayor and City Council 
From Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director
RE Professional Services - Civil Attorney  

SUMMARY 
The Council will appoint Leah Koch as the City’s civil attorney in response to the March 21, 2023 City 
Council Work Session, in which Joel Jamnick announced his upcoming retirement. 

BACKGROUND 
Minnesota Statute 412.221 Specific Powers of Council Subd. 5 Actions at Law states: 

 “The council shall have power to provide for the prosecution or defense of actions or proceedings at law 
in which the city may be interested and it may employ counsel for the purpose.” 

This provides City Council with the power to appoint a civil attorney.  

Campbell Knutson has provided legal services for over 20 years for the city. Their Municipal Law capabilities 
and areas of practice to include: 

-employment laws and labor relations -ordinance and resolution drafting
-environmental review -zoning and land use
-economic development -litigation
-council and other meetings - data practices

RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to continue professional services with Campbell Knutson and appoint Leah Koch as the City of Mora’s 
civil attorney. 



Item No. 6c 

 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: April 18, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Kelly Christianson, Accountant 
RE: Approving Transfers noted on Resolution 2023-422 

 
SUMMARY 
Approving Transfer of funds noted on Resolution 2023-422.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
During 2022 the City paid off the 2011A Series, General Obligation Street Reconstruction Bond based on the schedule for this 
bond. There are remaining monies in this fund after the bond was paid off. City staff recommend moving the money to the Future 
Improvement Fund for the Fox Run Development Park Project (CIP 5202-2021-01). This transfer will add the additional revenues 
needed to meet the park project commitment and meet or exceed the City’s matching funds for the MN DNR grant being sought 
to fully fund the park project. This transfer will eliminate or reduce the need to levy tax dollars in the future to fund this project. 
This transfer will also close out the 2011A Street Bond Fund (530).  
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

A. Motion to approve the accompanying resolution to transfer monies from the Debt Service Fund to the Future 
Improvement Fund, as presented.  

B. Do not approve transfer of funds.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to approve the accompanying resolution to transfer monies from the Debt Service Fund to the Future Improvement 
Fund, as presented.  
 



Resolution No. 2023-422 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA 
APPROVING THE TRANSFER OF MONIES FROM DEBT SERVICE FUND TO THE FUTURE IMPROVEMENT  

FUND  
 

WHEREAS, this resolution is intended to summarize the current 2023 transfer of monies between funds 
which are needed to close out the debt service fund and commit funds to ;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the City of Mora, Kanabec County, Minnesota 
reaffirms the transfer of monies between funds for 2023 as summarized by the following:  
 
As recommended per City Staff based on activity during the 2023 fiscal year: 
 
A transfer of the $95,578.62 balance, including any delinquent tax receivables, from the 2011A Bond 
Fund 530 to the Future Improvement Fund 409 to provide resources for the Fox Run Development Park 
Project (CIP 5202-2021-01).  
 

1. The G.O. Street Reconstruction Bonds, Series 2011A bond payments were completed in 
2022. This transfer will allow the closing of the debt service fund that is no longer 
needed.  

 
2. This transfer will provide the resources needed to meet the City’s commitment to the 

Fox Run Development Park Project’s matching grant application requirements. 
 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced and moved for adoption by Council Member __________ and 
seconded by Council Member __________. 

 
Voting for the Resolution: .......................  
Voting Against the Resolution: ...............  
Abstained from Voting: ...........................  
Absent: ....................................................  

 
Motion carried and resolution adopted this 18th day of April 2023. 

 
  ______________________________________  
ATTEST: Jake Mathison, Mayor  

 ______________________________________  
Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 



Item No. 8a 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

Date April 18, 2023  
To Mayor and City Council 
From Kirsten Faurie, Community Development Director 
RE Harrison Property Offer 

SUMMARY 

The City Council will consider an offer to purchase privately-owned land along the Snake River. 

DISCUSSION 

Bob Harrison owns 23 acres of land along the Snake River within Mora city limits. The land is situated between 
several other properties owned by the city. Mr. Harrison intends to sell the land and is offering the city the first 
opportunity before listing the property with a realtor. There is a 1970’s single-family home with attached 
garage located on the larger parcel; approximately half of the property along the river is in the floodway.  

Mr. Harrison stated his minimum asking price is $600,000.  

The Kanabec County Auditor’s 2022 Estimated Market Value for the properties are: 

 Parcel 1 (PID 22.00065.00) $ 49,700 

 Parcel 2 (PID 22.00060.00) $287,300 
  Total: $337,000 

The city’s Trail Plan included in the 2021 Comprehensive Plan includes a proposed trail along the river 
connecting Canoe Park to the existing trail near the dog park.   

Staff asked Mr. Harrison if the city decided not to purchase the property, would he be willing to grant the city 
an easement along the river for such a trail. Mr. Harrison indicated he was unwilling to offer an easement as it 
might negatively impact the appeal of the property to potential buyers.  

Purchasing the property would provide the city an opportunity to actualize the city’s trail plan and/or provide 
the city with land to develop. However, considering how little of the land is developable for housing, staff feels 
the price of the land is too high to make it a worthwhile investment for the city to pursue.  

OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

Accept Mr. Harrison’s offer and move forward with the purchase of property for $600,000; the city does not 
have funds budgeted for such a purchase and would likely need to secure the funds from the PUC.  

Make a counter-offer to purchase the property at a lower price; the city does not have funds budgeted for 
such a purchase and would likely need to secure the funds from the PUC.  

Decline Mr. Harrison’s offer. 



Memorandum 

4/12/2023  2 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Motion to decline Mr. Harrison’s offer to purchase his property.  
 
Attachments 
Letter from Mr. Harrison 
Map of Subject Site 
Trail Plan 



To: Mora City Council 

101 Lake St. South 

Mora, MN 55051 

 

To the Mora City Council, 

My name is Bob Harrison, a longtime resident of Mora. My wife Elaine and I are looking to sell 23 acres 

of our land within Mora city limits. The land is on the Snake River and abuts the city-owned Canoe Park 

on the north side, and the city’s dog park to the south.  Before listing the property with a realtor, we 

wanted to offer the City of Mora the chance to purchase it, perhaps for development or for creating a 

recreational corridor. My minimum asking price is $600,000.  

Sincerely,  

Bob Harrison 



Dog 

Park 

Wastewater 

treatment plant 

Canoe 

Park 

Subject Site 

(Parcel 1) 

LEGEND: 

 City-owned  

 property 

 

 Harrison  

 Property 

Subject Site 

(Parcel 2) 





M
N

T
H

 6
5

M
N

T
H

 6
5

M
a

h
o

g
an

y
 S

t
M

a
h

o
g

an
y

 S
t

Jo
p

lin
 S

t
Jo

p
lin

 S
t

220th Ave220th Ave

MNTH 23MNTH 23

G
ro

ve
 S

t
G

ro
ve

 S
t

L
ib

e
rt

y 
S

t
L

ib
e

rt
y 

S
t

9th St9th St

O
s

lin
 R

d
O

s
lin

 R
d

Howe AveHowe Ave

S
 W

a
ln

u
t 

S
t

S
 W

a
ln

u
t 

S
t

Fair AveFair Ave

N
 G

ro
ve

 S
t

N
 G

ro
ve

 S
t

Forest Ave E
Forest Ave E

S
 U

n
io

n
 S

t
S

 U
n

io
n

 S
t

Maple Ave EMaple Ave E

CSAH 6CSAH 6

N
 W

o
o

d
 S

t
N

 W
o

o
d

 S
t

180th Ave180th Ave

W Maple StW Maple St

Bean AveBean Ave

Riverside St

Riverside St

C
la

rk
 S

t
C

la
rk

 S
t

M
c

le
a

n
 S

t
M

c
le

a
n

 S
t

Je
w

e
ll  

 S
t

Je
w

e
ll  

 S
t

22
1s

t A
ve

22
1s

t A
ve

S
 P

a
rk

 S
t

S
 P

a
rk

 S
t

Collin StCollin St

F
is

h
 L

a
ke

 D
r

F
is

h
 L

a
ke

 D
r

Burnett D
r

Burnett D
r

Parker StParker St

S
 W

o
o

d
 S

t
S

 W
o

o
d

 S
t

7th St7th St

S
 G

ro
v

e 
S

t
S

 G
ro

v
e 

S
t

Forest Ave WForest Ave W

W
at

k
in

s
 S

t
W

at
k

in
s

 S
t

Ser
vi

ce
 D

r

Ser
vi

ce
 D

r

M
o

rr
is

o
n

 S
t

M
o

rr
is

o
n

 S
t

3rd St3rd St

N Industrial RdN Industrial Rd

F
ra

n
ki

e
 L

a
F

ra
n

ki
e

 L
a

4th St4th St

P
in

e
 R

id
g

e 
R

d
P

in
e

 R
id

g
e 

R
d

S B
ro

ok V
iew D

r

S B
ro

ok V
iew D

r

Edwards AveEdwards Ave

Brookview DrBrookview Dr

Ivo
r y S

t
I vo

r y  S
t

Portage AvePortage Ave

B
lu

e
b

ir
d

 S
t

B
lu

e
b

ir
d

 S
t

Division St

Division St

1st St1st St

Ellison RdEllison Rd Ellingson RdEllingson Rd

2nd St2nd St

Eld
ris

  W
ay

Eld
ris

  W
ay

210th Ave210th Ave

E
lc

if
f 

S
t

E
lc

if
f 

S
t

W Central AveW Central AveW Maple AveW Maple Ave

E
d

w
ar

d
 L

a
E

d
w

ar
d

 L
a

213th Ave213th Ave

Trailer Court StTrailer Court St

Pine Ridge Rd NPine Ridge Rd N

O
a

k S
t

O
a

k  S
t

E Central AveE Central Ave

215th Ave215th Ave

Villa AveVilla Ave

E
ve

rg
re

en
 S

t

E
ve

rg
re

en
 S

t

O
ld

 F
a

rm
 R

d
O

ld
 F

a
rm

 R
d

Dala LaDala La

S
 S

p
ru

ce
 S

t
S

 S
p

ru
ce

 S
t

Railroad Ave NWRailroad Ave NW

W
 P

ro
ko

s
ch

 R
d

W
 P

r o
ko

s
ch

 R
d

6th St6th St

C
ar

d
in

al
 S

t
C

ar
d

in
al

 S
t

Amaryllis Ct
Amaryllis Ct

Industrial Park BlvdIndustrial Park Blvd

Westwood CirWestwood Cir

Carol AveCarol Ave

L
ak

e 
S

t
L

ak
e 

S
t

220th Ave220th Ave

Ser
vi

ce
 D

r

Ser
vi

ce
 D

r

Maple Ave E
Maple Ave E

L
ib

e
rt

y 
S

t
L

ib
e

rt
y 

S
t

Howe AveHowe Ave

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS,
AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

O

P
a

th
: 

C
:\U

se
rs

\a
kn

o
rr

\M
y 

P
ro

je
ct

s\
M

or
a

\M
o

ra
_

T
ra

ils
.m

xd

0 1,500 3,000750
Feet

TRAIL PLAN
Mora, Minnesota

Print Date: 8/4/2021

This map is neither a legally recorded map nor a survey map and is not intended to be used as
one. This map is a compilation of records, information, and data gathered from various sources
listed on this map and is to be used for reference purposes only.  SEH does not warrant that the
Geographic Information System (GIS) Data used to prepare this map are error free, and SEH
does not represent that the GIS Data can be used for navigational, tracking, or any other
purpose requir ing exacting measurement of distance or direction or precision in the depiction of
geographic features.  The user of this map acknowledges that SEH shall not be liable for any
damages which arise out of the user's access or use of data provided.

Existing Trails

Other Proposed Trails

Corporate Limit

Future Connection 
to Munger Trail

Adopted by the Mora City Council on July 20, 2021



Item No. 8b 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: April 18th, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Joseph Kohlgraf, Public Works Director  
RE: Airport Taxi Lane Contract Award  

 
SUMMARY 
 Acceptance of Mora Municipal Airport taxi lane Improvement Project Bid Award. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 The Mora Municipal Airport is currently due to taxi lane improvements laid out in the Airport CIP.  A 
posting with the local paper and SEH for project bids came due last week and a final contractor was 
picked.  Staff is asking to award the project to the low bidder, Douglas Kerr Underground, LLC in the 
amount of $288,376.02.  Douglas Kerr Underground, LLC has done work for the City of Mora in the 
past and feel this will be a good choice. 
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 
This project is in line with the current airport CIP and will be funded by FAA (90%), MN DOT aviation (70% of the 
10% not covered by FAA and City of Mora (30% of the 10% not covered by FAA). 
Do not award project and fall behind on CIP which will cause increased maintenance and possible reduction in 
funds from FAA moving forward. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Staff recommends moving forward with the acceptance of the Bid Award to the low bidder, Douglas Kerr 
Underground, LLC. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments; SEH Memorandum- Construction Contract Award Recommendation 
 



Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., 3535 Vadnais Center Drive, St. Paul, MN 55110-5196 

SEH is an equal opportunity employer   |   www.sehinc.com   |   651.490.2000   |   800.325.2055   |   888.908.8166 fax 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 

 City of Mora, Minnesota 

 

FROM: Jake Jorgenson, PE 

 

DATE: April 12, 2023 

 

RE: Construction Contract Award Recommendation 

 SEH No.  MORA0 171020    
 

PROJECT SCOPE: 

The 2023 project for the Mora Municipal Airport includes reconstruction of taxilane pavements.  

The taxilanes will be reconstructed full depth and full width in the north end of the building area.   

 

BID RESULTS – 2023 Reconstruction: 

On 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, April 11, 2023, five bids were received for the above-referenced project. The bids 

ranged from a high of  $521,700.00 to a low of $288,376.02. The low bid received was submitted by 

Douglas Kerr Underground, LLC, of Mora, MN in the amount of $288,376.02. 

 

Contractor Base Bid Alternate 1 Total Bid 

Douglas-Kerr Underground, LLC  $         205,699.51  $         82,676.51   $         288,376.02 

AMC LLC  $         272,780.58   $         126,635.94   $         399,416.52  

OMG Midwest Inc.   $         308,101.25   $         121,050.00  $         429,151.25  

Knife River Corporation  $         317,901.00  $         126,350.00  $         444,251.00  

Urban Companies  $         370,850.00   $         150,850.00   $         521,700.00  

    

    

    

SEH RECOMMENDATION: 

Based on the outcome of the quotes and the company reputation, it is our recommendation that the City of 

Mora award the 2023 Taxilane Reconstruction project to Douglas Kerr Underground, LLC, contingent on 

reception of the FAA and MnDOT Aeronautics grant. Award is recommended for the base bid and 

alternate. 

 

In reliance on our experience with Douglas Kerr Underground, LLC and/or materials and information 

provided by the contractor, we have determined that 1) they have a sufficient understanding of the project 

and equipment to perform the construction for which it bid; and 2) according to their bonding agent they 

presently have the financial ability to complete the project bid. SEH makes no representation or warranty 

as to the actual financial viability of the contractor or its ability to complete its work.  

 

PROJECT COST SUMMARY: 

The following table summarizes the costs of the components for this year’s federal and state grant: 

 

2023 TL Recon (Douglas Kerr) - Eligible     $   235,257.02 

2023 TL Recon (Douglas Kerr) – In-eligible     $     53,119.00 

Design Engineering (SEH) – Eligible     $     38,600.00 



Construction Contract Award Recommendation 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Design Engineering (SEH) – In-eligible     $     5,200.00 

Construction Administration Engineering (SEH) (FAA Eligible)   $   34,200.00 

Construction Administration Engineering (SEH) (FAA In-eligible)  $     5,700.00 

Administration (City of Mora)     $     2,500.00 

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS (APPROX):     $ 374,576.02 

 

The eligible portions of the project are anticipated to be funded by a 90 percent FAA grant.  The MnDOT 

and local shares for the project are anticipated to be five percent each for federally eligible portions.  

Portions of the project work that are not eligible for federal funding would be funded with a MnDOT 

grant at 70 percent, with 30 percent of the costs covered locally.  Since the final FAA and MnDOT 

eligibility determination is made once the grant application is submitted, there may be some changes in 

the final local share.  See the breakdown below for Federal, State and Local Share. 

 

 

 



TABULATION OF BIDS 1 2

2023 Taxilane Reconstruction Engineer's Estimate Douglas-Kerr Underground, LLC ACM LLC

Mora Municipal Airport PO Box 85

SEH No.: MORA0 171020 Mora, MN 55051

Bid Date: 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, April 11, 2023

Item No. Item Unit
Est. 

Quantity Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

105 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $24,167.00 $24,167.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00

50-07 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKING LS 1 15,000.00 15,000.00 3,700.00 3,700.00 5,250.00 5,250.00

50-12 MAINTENANCE AND RESTORATION OF HAUL LS 1 1,500.00 1,500.00 4,055.00 4,055.00 1,562.07 1,562.07

70-08 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,575.00 1,575.00

P-101-5.1 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT - FULL DEPTH SY 2650 5.00 13,250.00 3.45 9,142.50 7.55 20,007.50

P-101-5.2 DEMO EXISTING GAS VENTS LS 1 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.01 0.01 1,223.95 1,223.95

P-101-5.3 SAW CUTTING, FULL DEPTH LF 1000 5.00 5,000.00 3.65 3,650.00 2.81 2,810.00

P-152-5.1 SUBGRADE PREPRATAION SY 2650 3.00 7,950.00 2.90 7,685.00 3.73 9,884.50

P-152-5.2 COMMON EXCAVATION (EV) CY 600 20.00 12,000.00 14.55 8,730.00 25.52 15,312.00

P-152-5.3 SUBGRADE EXCAVATION (EV) CY 75 40.00 3,000.00 5.40 405.00 49.97 3,747.75

P-208 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE (CV) CY 600 40.00 24,000.00 39.75 23,850.00 55.11 33,066.00

C-102-5.3 FILTER LOG, TYPE WOOD FIBER BIOLOG LF 500 5.00 2,500.00 3.55 1,775.00 5.04 2,520.00

31 34 10 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE 7 SY 2650 3.00 7,950.00 5.80 15,370.00 2.47 6,545.50

P-620 PAVEMENT MARKING - YELLOW SF 300 10.00 3,000.00 2.00 600.00 34.67 10,401.00

2360.501 TYPE SPB WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (PG 58-28) TON 500 110.00 55,000.00 103.00 51,500.00 146.00 73,000.00

T-901-5.1 SEEDING, FERTILIZATION, MULCH, STABILIZATION LS 1 5,000.00 5,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 2,133.31 2,133.31

T-905-5.1 SELECT TOPSOIL BORROW (CV) CY 50 45.00 2,250.00 45.45 2,272.50 53.53 2,676.50

2564.518 AIRCRAFT RESTRICTION SIGN, INCLUDING EA 3 500.00 1,500.00 150.00 450.00 157.50 472.50

Base Bid - Schedule A Total Bid Price

P-101-5.1 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT - FULL DEPTH SY 950 5.00 4,750.00 3.45 3,277.50 8.95 8,502.50

P-152-5.1 SUBGRADE PREPRATAION SY 950 3.00 2,850.00 2.90 2,755.00 4.97 4,721.50

P-152-5.2 COMMON EXCAVATION (EV) CY 200 20.00 4,000.00 14.55 2,910.00 31.06 6,212.00

P-152-5.3 SUBGRADE EXCAVATION (EV) CY 25 40.00 1,000.00 5.40 135.00 68.32 1,708.00

P-208 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE (CV) CY 200 40.00 8,000.00 39.75 7,950.00 68.61 13,722.00

31 34 10 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE 7 SY 900 3.00 2,700.00 5.80 5,220.00 3.03 2,727.00

2360.501 TYPE SPB WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (PG 58-28) TON 200 110.00 22,000.00 103.00 20,600.00 145.00 29,000.00

Base Bid - Schedule B Total Bid Price

206,187.58

45,300.00 42,847.50 66,593.00

Base Bid - Schedule A

Base Bid - Schedule B

196,400.00 162,852.01

$241,700.00 $205,699.51 $272,780.58

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. Page 1 of 4



TABULATION OF BIDS 1 2

2023 Taxilane Reconstruction Engineer's Estimate Douglas-Kerr Underground, LLC ACM LLC

Mora Municipal Airport PO Box 85

SEH No.: MORA0 171020 Mora, MN 55051

Bid Date: 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, April 11, 2023

Item No. Item Unit
Est. 

Quantity Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

$241,700.00 $205,699.51 $272,780.58

Alternate 1 - Schedule A
50-07 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKING LS 1 5,000.00 5,000.00 3,700.00 3,700.00 4,200.00 4,200.00

P-101-5.1 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT - FULL DEPTH SY 1450 5.00 7,250.00 3.45 5,002.50 7.73 11,208.50

P-101-5.2 DEMO EXISTING GAS VENTS LS 1 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.01 0.01 1,228.54 1,228.54

P-101-5.3 SAW CUTTING, FULL DEPTH LF 250 5.00 1,250.00 3.65 912.50 7.10 1,775.00

P-152-5.1 SUBGRADE PREPRATAION SY 1450 3.00 4,350.00 2.90 4,205.00 4.40 6,380.00

P-152-5.2 COMMON EXCAVATION (EV) CY 350 20.00 7,000.00 14.55 5,092.50 17.75 6,212.50

P-152-5.3 SUBGRADE EXCAVATION (EV) CY 50 40.00 2,000.00 5.40 270.00 67.49 3,374.50

P-208 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE (CV) CY 350 40.00 14,000.00 39.75 13,912.50 51.55 18,042.50

31 34 10 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE 7 SY 1450 3.00 4,350.00 5.80 8,410.00 2.71 3,929.50

2360.501 TYPE SPB WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (PG 58-28) TON 300 110.00 33,000.00 103.00 30,900.00 136.50 40,950.00

Altnerate 1 - Schedule A Total Bid Price

P-101-5.1 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT - FULL DEPTH SY 200 5.00 1,000.00 3.05 610.00 11.37 2,274.00

P-152-5.1 SUBGRADE PREPRATAION SY 200 3.00 600.00 2.90 580.00 28.80 5,760.00

P-152-5.2 COMMON EXCAVATION (EV) CY 50 20.00 1,000.00 14.55 727.50 99.82 4,991.00

P-152-5.3 SUBGRADE EXCAVATION (EV) CY 10 40.00 400.00 5.40 54.00 265.94 2,659.40

P-208 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE (CV) CY 50 40.00 2,000.00 39.80 1,990.00 97.45 4,872.50

31 34 10 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE 7 SY 200 3.00 600.00 5.80 1,160.00 7.14 1,428.00

2360.501 TYPE SPB WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (PG 58-28) TON 50 110.00 5,500.00 103.00 5,150.00 147.00 7,350.00

Alternate 2 - Schedule B Total Bid Price

97,301.04

11,100.00 10,271.50 29,334.90

Alternate 2 - Schedule B

83,200.00 72,405.01

TOTAL BID PRICE - Base Bid + Alternates $336,000.00 $399,416.52$288,376.02

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. Page 2 of 4



TABULATION OF BIDS
2023 Taxilane Reconstruction

Mora Municipal Airport

SEH No.: MORA0 171020

Bid Date: 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, April 11, 2023

Item No. Item Unit
Est. 

Quantity

105 MOBILIZATION LS 1

50-07 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKING LS 1

50-12 MAINTENANCE AND RESTORATION OF HAUL LS 1

70-08 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1

P-101-5.1 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT - FULL DEPTH SY 2650

P-101-5.2 DEMO EXISTING GAS VENTS LS 1

P-101-5.3 SAW CUTTING, FULL DEPTH LF 1000

P-152-5.1 SUBGRADE PREPRATAION SY 2650

P-152-5.2 COMMON EXCAVATION (EV) CY 600

P-152-5.3 SUBGRADE EXCAVATION (EV) CY 75

P-208 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE (CV) CY 600

C-102-5.3 FILTER LOG, TYPE WOOD FIBER BIOLOG LF 500

31 34 10 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE 7 SY 2650

P-620 PAVEMENT MARKING - YELLOW SF 300

2360.501 TYPE SPB WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (PG 58-28) TON 500

T-901-5.1 SEEDING, FERTILIZATION, MULCH, STABILIZATION LS 1

T-905-5.1 SELECT TOPSOIL BORROW (CV) CY 50

2564.518 AIRCRAFT RESTRICTION SIGN, INCLUDING EA 3

Base Bid - Schedule A Total Bid Price

P-101-5.1 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT - FULL DEPTH SY 950

P-152-5.1 SUBGRADE PREPRATAION SY 950

P-152-5.2 COMMON EXCAVATION (EV) CY 200

P-152-5.3 SUBGRADE EXCAVATION (EV) CY 25

P-208 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE (CV) CY 200

31 34 10 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE 7 SY 900

2360.501 TYPE SPB WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (PG 58-28) TON 200

Base Bid - Schedule B Total Bid Price

Base Bid - Schedule A

Base Bid - Schedule B

3 4 5

OMG Midwest Inc. dba MN Paving MKnife River Corporation Urban Companies

14475 Quiram Drive 4787 Shadow Wood Dr NE 3781 Labore Rd.

Rogers, MN 55374 Sauk Rapids, MN 56379 St. Paul, MN 55110

Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

$24,250.00 $24,250.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $18,500.00 $18,500.00

18,500.00 18,500.00 13,300.00 13,300.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

1,000.00 1,000.00 1.00 1.00 15,000.00 15,000.00

15,250.00 15,250.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 12,500.00 12,500.00

7.00 18,550.00 5.00 13,250.00 8.00 21,200.00

6,000.00 6,000.00 5,500.00 5,500.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

2.25 2,250.00 2.00 2,000.00 6.00 6,000.00

6.00 15,900.00 10.00 26,500.00 3.00 7,950.00

27.50 16,500.00 25.00 15,000.00 50.00 30,000.00

48.75 3,656.25 45.00 3,375.00 80.00 6,000.00

60.00 36,000.00 90.00 54,000.00 90.00 54,000.00

5.40 2,700.00 5.00 2,500.00 6.00 3,000.00

5.40 14,310.00 5.00 13,250.00 6.00 15,900.00

26.50 7,950.00 2.00 600.00 10.00 3,000.00

105.00 52,500.00 103.00 51,500.00 142.00 71,000.00

10,500.00 10,500.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

55.00 2,750.00 50.00 2,500.00 70.00 3,500.00

200.00 600.00 50.00 150.00 750.00 2,250.00

7.00 6,650.00 5.00 4,750.00 8.00 7,600.00

6.00 5,700.00 10.00 9,500.00 3.00 2,850.00

27.50 5,500.00 25.00 5,000.00 50.00 10,000.00

49.00 1,225.00 45.00 1,125.00 80.00 2,000.00

60.00 12,000.00 90.00 18,000.00 90.00 18,000.00

5.40 4,860.00 5.00 4,500.00 6.00 5,400.00

115.00 23,000.00 103.00 20,600.00 151.00 30,200.00

249,166.25 254,426.00 294,800.00

58,935.00 63,475.00 76,050.00

$317,901.00 $370,850.00$308,101.25

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. Page 3 of 4



TABULATION OF BIDS
2023 Taxilane Reconstruction

Mora Municipal Airport

SEH No.: MORA0 171020

Bid Date: 1:00 p.m., Tuesday, April 11, 2023

Item No. Item Unit
Est. 

Quantity

Alternate 1 - Schedule A
50-07 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKING LS 1

P-101-5.1 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT - FULL DEPTH SY 1450

P-101-5.2 DEMO EXISTING GAS VENTS LS 1

P-101-5.3 SAW CUTTING, FULL DEPTH LF 250

P-152-5.1 SUBGRADE PREPRATAION SY 1450

P-152-5.2 COMMON EXCAVATION (EV) CY 350

P-152-5.3 SUBGRADE EXCAVATION (EV) CY 50

P-208 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE (CV) CY 350

31 34 10 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE 7 SY 1450

2360.501 TYPE SPB WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (PG 58-28) TON 300

Altnerate 1 - Schedule A Total Bid Price

P-101-5.1 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT - FULL DEPTH SY 200

P-152-5.1 SUBGRADE PREPRATAION SY 200

P-152-5.2 COMMON EXCAVATION (EV) CY 50

P-152-5.3 SUBGRADE EXCAVATION (EV) CY 10

P-208 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE (CV) CY 50

31 34 10 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE 7 SY 200

2360.501 TYPE SPB WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (PG 58-28) TON 50

Alternate 2 - Schedule B Total Bid Price

Alternate 2 - Schedule B

TOTAL BID PRICE - Base Bid + Alternates

3 4 5

OMG Midwest Inc. dba MN Paving MKnife River Corporation Urban Companies

14475 Quiram Drive 4787 Shadow Wood Dr NE 3781 Labore Rd.

Rogers, MN 55374 Sauk Rapids, MN 56379 St. Paul, MN 55110

Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

$317,901.00 $370,850.00$308,101.25

5,500.00 5,500.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

7.00 10,150.00 5.00 7,250.00 8.00 11,600.00

6,000.00 6,000.00 5,500.00 5,500.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

3.00 750.00 2.00 500.00 6.00 1,500.00

6.00 8,700.00 10.00 14,500.00 3.00 4,350.00

27.50 9,625.00 25.00 8,750.00 50.00 17,500.00

49.00 2,450.00 45.00 2,250.00 80.00 4,000.00

60.00 21,000.00 90.00 31,500.00 90.00 31,500.00

5.40 7,830.00 5.00 7,250.00 6.00 8,700.00

115.00 34,500.00 103.00 30,900.00 135.00 40,500.00

7.00 1,400.00 5.00 1,000.00 8.00 1,600.00

6.00 1,200.00 14.00 2,800.00 3.00 600.00

27.50 1,375.00 25.00 1,250.00 50.00 2,500.00

49.00 490.00 45.00 450.00 80.00 800.00

60.00 3,000.00 90.00 4,500.00 90.00 4,500.00

5.40 1,080.00 5.00 1,000.00 6.00 1,200.00

120.00 6,000.00 103.00 5,150.00 140.00 7,000.00

106,505.00 110,200.00 132,650.00

14,545.00 16,150.00 18,200.00

$429,151.25 $444,251.00 $521,700.00

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. Page 4 of 4



Item No. 8c 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: April 18th, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Joseph Kohlgraf, Public Works Director  
RE: Airport Fuel System Grant Request  

 
SUMMARY 
 Acceptance of Mora Municipal Airport Grant for Fuel Line Repair/Replacement. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 The Mora Municipal Airport is currently dealing with a out of date fuel system that needs repairs due 
to age and material make-up.  The system has been repaired multiple times and is needing a complete 
replacement to maintain the system and keep it in use.  This has been a project that has been budgeted 
for in the past and has seen cost increases.  Currently, the system can maintain but is past its life 
expectancy.  This funding source will help reduce the cost of needed repairs to guarantee continued 
use.  Staff is asking for approval for this grant request to secure funding to help with the repair with 
funding from MN DOT Aeronautics at 70%, $68,090.69 and local at 30%, $29,181.72. 
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

1. Move forward with submittal approval for the grant application for the Fuel System Improvements.  
Money has been budgeted to cover the 30% local (City of Mora) 

2. Not accept and lose the grant option which would result in covering the complete cost. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Staff recommends accepting submittal for the MNDOT grant application for Fuel System Improvements. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments; Grant Submittal letter for Grant Application for Fuel System Improvements 
 



 

April 12, 2023 
RE: Mora Municipal Airport 
  FY 2023 State Grant Request 
  Fuel System Rehabilitation 

Dan Boerner, PE 
Regional Airport Engineer 
Minnesota Department of Transportation 
Office of Aeronautics 
395 John Ireland Blvd.   
St. Paul, MN 55107 
 
Dear Mr. Boerner: 
 
The City of Mora is requesting a grant from the MnDOT Office of Aeronautics for the Mora Municipal Airport 
for State Fiscal Year 2023, for the Fuel System Rehabilitation. Actual costs associated with this project are shown 
below: 
 
2023 Fuel Tank Rehabilitation  
 Fuel Tank Rehabilitation (Minnesota Petroleum Service) $88,772.41  
 Design Engineering & Construction Administration Engineering (SEH) $8,500.00  
  $97,272.41 
   

  TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $97,272.41     
 MnDOT Share – 70% $68,090.69  
 Local Share – 30% $29,181.72  

 
This letter serves as a formal request for State funding to provide for this project. The requested State grant for 
this work is $68,090.69. Thank you for your continued support of the Mora Municipal Airport.   
 
Please contact me if you have any questions.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
  
 
Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 
City of Mora, Minnesota 



Item No. 8d 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: April 18th, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Joseph Kohlgraf, Public Works Director 
RE: Cemetery Fee Schedule Changes 

 
SUMMARY 
 Addition of Dual Burial Administration Fee (same grave, same time) with a cost of $80.00 to cover 
additional/added paperwork for registering and archiving. 
Addition of wordage stating, “Dual burial- defined as “Burial of two (2) interments occurring in one 
cemetery plot during a single ceremony.”. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 In 2022, the fee schedule had in it the Dual Burial Administrative fee ($60,00) for addressing dual 
burial situations and was used very little at that time.  For the 2023 schedule, it was not continued and 
so far, this year we have seen an increased occurrence.  Staff would like to have this fee put back into 
the fee schedule, with a cost adjustment, to address this process moving forward to cover 
administrative staff time that was covered in previous years. Staff would also like the wordage added 
to reflect this action for transparency in the future.  
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

1. Do nothing and absorb the cost into the already lean cemetery budget. 
2. Approve and adopt the change to address future occurrences and add verbiage definition. 
3. Do nothing at this time, make changes for the 2024 budget along with verbiage addition.  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Staff recommends approving and adopting the change/addition of “Dual Burial Administrative Fee-$80.00 under 
the 2023 fee schedule under the heading Oakwood Cemetery. 
Staff recommends adding verbiage to define “Dual Burial” for clarity and transparency in the future. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 



Item No. 8e 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: April 18th, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Joseph Kohlgraf, Public Works Director 
RE: Airport TEMP (Triggers Master Plan) Proposal 

SUMMARY 
 Acceptance of 2023 TEMP (Triggering Event Master Plan) proposal from SEH for work to be done for 
the Runaway Construction Project. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 The Mora Municipal Airport is in the process of design for a rebuild of the runway (35-17) due to 
excessive joint issues.  Currently, The FAA is not in support of the project which leads to a required 
study for the justification of repairs to the runway.  Staff is asking for the approval of the 
proposal presented from SEH with a cost of $54,800.00, to be covered by FAA 90%, State 
(MNDOT) 5%, and Local (City) 5%. 

OPTIONS & IMPACTS 
Accept Contract agreement with SEH for TEMP project. This project is required to move forward with the Airport 
Runway Repair Project.  
Do not accept contract agreement.  By not accepting, the runway project will not move forward. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends moving forward with the acceptance of TEMP proposal from SEH. 

Attachments; SEH TEMP Contract Proposal 



Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. | 3535 Vadnais Center Drive | Saint Paul, MN  55110-5196 

SEH is an equal opportunity employer   |   www.sehinc.com   |   651.490.2000   |   800.325.2055   |   888.908.8166 fax 

 

 

April 12, 2023 RE: City of Mora 
Mora Municipal Airport 
2023 Triggering Event Master Plan (TEMP) 
 

 
 
 
Glenn Anderson 
City Administrator 
City of Mora 
101 Lake Street South 
Mora, MN 55051 
 
  
 
Dear Glenn: 
 
Thank you for choosing SEH for engineering and planning services at the Mora Municipal Airport. We are pleased 
to present a proposal for a 2023 Triggering Event Master Plan (TEMP) for documentation and justification of the 
runway conditions prior to the reconstruction project.  
 
Enclosed is a copy of our proposal. If acceptable, please sign where indicated. Please keep a copy for City 
records and then return an electronic copy to my attention at munderwood@sehinc.com. I will forward the 
contract electronically to Dan Boerner, MnDOT Office of Aeronautics, as part of the grant application process. 
 
Please contact me at 763.442.2849 if you have any questions or comments. We look forward to working with you 
on this project. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Melissa Underwood 
Airport Planner 
 
 
Enclosure:  Contract Agreement, Scope of Services, Estimated Hours and Fees 

  
X:\KO\M\MORA0\Common\Airport\PM\2023 TEMP 
 

mailto:munderwood@sehinc.com


 1 

 ARCHITECT/ENGINEER AGREEMENT 
 Between 

City of Mora, Minnesota 

(OWNER) 

and 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. 

(CONSULTANT) 

for 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this _______ day of ____________________, 20___, by and 
between the City of Mora, Minnesota, hereinafter referred to as the OWNER, and Short Elliott Hendrickson 
Inc.® (SEH), with a regular place of business at 3535 Vadnais Center Drive, St. Paul, Minnesota 55110, 
hereinafter referred to as the CONSULTANT. 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
That the OWNER and CONSULTANT, for the consideration hereinafter named, agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE DONE 
 
The OWNER agrees to and hereby does retain and employ CONSULTANT and CONSULTANT agrees to 

perform Architectural, Engineering and/or other Professional Services for the project at the Mora Municipal 

Airport, entitled: 

2023 Triggering Event Master Plan (TEMP) 

hereinafter referred to as the Project. 
 
The Project and those services to be performed hereunder are more particularly described in ATTACHMENT 
A, a part hereof, and may be financed in part by grant-in-aid programs of the Minnesota Department of 
Transportation (Mn/DOT), Office of Aeronautics, and/or the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) as 
described in Article 14. 
 
ARTICLE 2. PERIOD OF SERVICE 
 
Compensation for CONSULTANT’S services as provided elsewhere in this Agreement has been agreed to in 
anticipation of an orderly and continuous progress of CONSULTANT’S services through completion. In this 
regard, if the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within 12 months of the date 
hereof, through no fault of CONSULTANT, any lump sum or maximum payment amounts shall be equitably 
adjusted. 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ARTICLE 3. COMPENSATION TO CONSULTANT 
 
A. Compensation to CONSULTANT for services described in this Agreement shall be on a Lump Sum 

basis, Cost Reimbursement Plus Fixed Fee basis and/or an Hourly Rate basis, as designated in the 
box below, and in ATTACHMENT B and as hereinafter described. 

 1. A Lump Sum method of payment for CONSULTANT’S services shall typically apply to all or 
parts of a work scope here CONSULTANT’S tasks can be readily defined and/or where the 
level of effort required to accomplish such tasks can be estimated with a reasonable degree 
of accuracy. The OWNER shall make monthly payments to CONSULTANT within 30 
calendar days of date of invoice based on an estimated percentage of completion of 
CONSULTANT’S services. 

  Reimbursement for Direct Expenses incurred in the performance of the work shall be 
included in the Lump Sum amount, unless otherwise set forth in ATTACHMENT B. 

 2. A Cost Reimbursement Plus Fixed Fee method of payment for CONSULTANT’S services 
shall typically apply to all or parts of work scope where CONSULTANT’S tasks cannot be 
readily defined and/or where the level of effort required to accomplish such tasks cannot be 
established with any reasonable degree of accuracy. Under a Cost Reimbursement Plus 
Fixed Fee method of payment, the CONSULTANT shall be paid for the actual costs of 
providing required services plus a fixed fee payment as defined in FAA Advisory Circular 
150/5100-14B, dated November 21, 1988, and as further defined as follows: 

  a. Direct Salary Costs incurred by CONSULTANT for employee’s time directly chargeable 
to the Project, and in accordance with the CONSULTANT’S SALARY SCHEDULE 
included in ATTACHMENT B. Periodic revisions to the schedule may be made and any 
such revisions shall be submitted by CONSULTANT to the OWNER for approval. 

  b. Overhead Costs including overhead on direct labor including, but not limited to, 
employment taxes, fringe benefits, holidays, vacation, and sick leave and all allowable 
general and administrative overhead costs. Overhead Costs shall be calculated as a 
percentage of Direct Salary Costs, with such percentage based on CONSULTAT’S 
audited records. The Overhead Rate to be applied to this Agreement and any special 
provisions relating thereto shall be set forth in ATTACHMENT B. 

  c. Direct Non-Salary Expenses incurred by CONSULTANT for costs directly chargeable to 
the project, including but not limited to: 

   1) Travel and subsistence. 

   2) Computer services. 

   3) Outside professional and technical services. 

   4) Identifiable reproduction and reprographic charges. 

   5) Expendable field supplies and special field equipment rental. 

   6) Other acceptable costs for such additional items and services as may be 
required by the OWNER to fulfill the terms of this Agreement. 

  d. Fixed Fee. In addition to the above reimbursement of costs, CONSULTANT shall be 
paid a fixed fee in the amount set forth in Attachment B. It is agreed that the fixed fee 
will be subject to adjustment in case of a work scope change, abandonment of the work 
prior to completion, or deletion of specific tasks. 



 3 

The OWNER shall make monthly payments to CONSULTANT within 30 calendar days of date of 
invoice based on computations made in accordance with the above charges for services provided 
and expenses incurred to date, including a proportionate amount of the fixed fee. Invoices shall be 
accompanied by supporting evidence as required. 

 3. If no Federal funds are involved in this Agreement, an Hourly Rate method of payment for 
CONSULTANT’S services may be utilized as an alternative to the Lump Sum or Cost 
Reimbursement Plus Fixed Fee methods. Under an Hourly Rate method of payment, 
CONSULTANT shall be paid for the actual hours worked on the Project by CONSULTANT’S 
technical personnel times an hourly billing rate established for each employee. Hourly billing 
rates shall include compensation for all salary costs, payroll burden, general and administrative 
overhead and professional fee. A rate schedule shall be furnished by CONSULTANT to 
OWNER upon request. 

  In addition to the foregoing, CONSULTANT shall be reimbursed at cost for the following Direct 
Expenses when incurred in the performance of the work: 

  a. Travel and subsistence. 

  b. Computer services. 

  c. Owner approved outside professional and technical services. 

  d. Identifiable reproduction and reprographic charges. 

  e. Expendable field supplies and special field equipment rental. 

  f. Other acceptable costs for such additional items and services as may be required by 
the Owner to fulfill the terms of this Agreement. 

  The OWNER shall make monthly payments to CONSULTANT within 30 calendar days of date 
of invoice based on computations made in accordance with the above charges for services 
provided and expenses incurred to date, accompanied by support evidence as required. 

 
B. The OWNER, The Mn/DOT, Office of Aeronautics, the FAA, or their authorized representatives shall 

have access to CONSULTANT’S records for the purpose of accounting and audit. The 
CONSULTANT shall maintain all records relative to this Agreement for a period of not less than three 
years, subsequent to the OWNER’S final payment to CONSULTANT and until the project is 
financially closed-out by the FAA. 

 
ARTICLE 4. EXTRA WORK AND SERVICES NOT INCLUDED IN THIS CONTRACT 
 
If CONSULTANT is of the opinion that any services it has been directed to perform is beyond the Scope of 
this Agreement, or that the level of effort required significantly exceeds that estimated due to changed 
conditions and thereby constitutes extra work, it shall promptly notify the OWNER of that fact. Extra work, 
additional compensation for same, and extension of time for completion shall be covered by a Supplemental 
Agreement entered into by both parties and approved by Mn/DOT and FAA, prior to proceeding with any extra 
work or related expenditures. 
 
ARTICLE 5. ABANDONMENT, CHANGE OF PLAN AND TERMINATION 
 
Either Party has the right to terminate this Agreement upon seven calendar days’ written notice. In addition, 
the OWNER may at any time, reduce the scope of this Agreement. Such reduction in scope shall be set forth 
in a written notice from the OWNER to CONSULTANT. In the event of unresolved dispute over change in 
scope or changed conditions, this Agreement may also be terminated, upon seven calendar days’ written 
notice as provided above. 



 4 

 
In the event of termination, all documents finished or unfinished, prepared by CONSULTANT under this 
Agreement shall be made available by CONSULTANT to the OWNER pursuant to Article 7, and there shall be 
no further obligation of the OWNER to CONSULTANT under this Agreement, except for payment of amounts 
due and owing for work performed and expenses incurred to the date and time of termination, computed in 
accordance with Article 3. 
 
In the event of a reduction in scope of the Project work, CONSULTANT shall be paid for the work performed 
and expenses incurred on the project work thus reduced and for any completed and abandoned work for 
which payment has not been made, computed in accordance with Article 3. 
 
ARTICLE 6. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
In the event of an irreconcilable dispute under this Agreement, which is not resolvable through informal 
means, the parties may, upon written agreement, submit to the resolution process set out in this provision. 
Once the parties have agreed to the resolution process, each party shall have seven (7) calendar days to 
designate one representative, who shall have authority to act on this Agreement. If either party fails within that 
time to inform the other party in writing of its designation, the other party is free to pursue all other legal and 
equitable remedies. Within ten (10) calendar days of designation of the representative, the representatives 
shall meet and shall entertain such presentation of testimony and other evidence as the CONSULTANT and 
the OWNER may wish to present with respect to the dispute. Within seven (7) calendar days after the close of 
such presentation, the representative shall resolve the dispute or either party is free to pursue all other legal 
and equitable remedies. When the representatives resolve the dispute, their decision shall be final and 
conclusive. Should the representatives be unable to agree on a resolution of the dispute, then the parties are 
free to pursue all other legal and equitable remedies. Each party’s costs for the dispute resolution shall be 
borne by the respective party. 
 
If the parties do not agree in writing to the resolution process set out above, either party is entitled to pursue 
any other legal or equitable remedies available. 
 
ARTICLE 7. DISPOSITION OF PLANS, REPORTS, AND OTHER DATA 
 
At the time of completion or termination of the work, CONSULTANT shall make available to the OWNER, all 
maps, tracings, reports, resource materials and other documents pertaining to the work or to the Project. All 
such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by the OWNER or others on 
extension of the Project or any other project. Any reuse without written verification or adaptation by 
CONSULTANT for the specific purpose intended will be at OWNER’S sole risk and without liability or legal 
exposure to CONSULTANT. In this regard, the OWNER will indemnify and hold harmless CONSULTANT 
from any and all suits or claims of third parties arising out of such reuse, which is not specifically verified, 
adapted or authorized by CONSULTANT. 
 
ARTICLE 8. DOCUMENTS FORMING THE CONTRACT 
 
The contract documents shall be deemed to include this Agreement with all accompanying attachments of 
part hereof. 
 
ARTICLE 9. OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITY 
 
A. To permit CONSULTANT to perform the services required hereunder, the OWNER shall supply in 

proper time and sequence, the following at no expense to CONSULTANT. 
 
 1. Provide all necessary information regarding its requirements as necessary for orderly progress 

of the work. 
 



 5 

 2. Designate in writing, a person to act as OWNER’S representative with respect to the services 
to be rendered under this Agreement. Such person shall have authority to transmit 
instructions, receive instructions, receive information, interpret, and define OWNER’S policies 
with respect to CONSULTANT’S services. 

 
 3. Furnish, as required for performance of CONSULTANT’S services (except to the extent 

provided otherwise in ATTACHMENT A), data prepared by or services of others, including 
without limitation, core borings, probings and subsurface explorations, hydrographic and 
geohydrologic surveys, laboratory tests and inspections of samples, materials and equipment; 
appropriate professional interpretations of all of the foregoing; environmental assessment and 
impact statements; property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, topographic and utility 
surveys; property descriptions; zoning, deed and other land use restriction; and other special 
data not covered in ATTACHMENT A. 

 
 4. Provide access to, and make all provisions for CONSULTANT to enter upon publicly- and 

privately-owned property as required to perform the work. 
 
 5. Act as liaison with other agencies to carry out necessary coordination and negotiations; furnish 

approvals and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project 
and such approvals and consents from others as may be necessary for completion of the 
Project. 

 
 6. Examine all reports, sketches, drawings, specifications and other documents prepared and 

presented by CONSULTANT, obtain advice of an attorney, insurance counselor or others as 
OWNER deems necessary for such examination and render in writing, decisions pertaining 
thereto within a reasonable time so as not to delay the services of CONSULTANT. 

 
 7. Give prompt written notice to CONSULTANT whenever OWNER observes or otherwise 

becomes aware of any development that affects the scope or timing of CONSULTANT’S 
services or any defect in the work of Construction Contractor(s), Consultants or 
CONSULTANT. 

 
 8. Initiate action, where appropriate, to identify and investigate the nature and extent of asbestos 

and/or pollutant in the Project and to abate and/or remove the same as may be required by 
federal, state or local statute, ordinance, code, rule, or regulation now existing or hereinafter 
enacted or amended. For purposes of these General Provisions, “pollution” shall mean any 
solid, liquid, gaseous, or thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke, vapor, soot, alkalis, 
chemicals and hazardous or toxic waste. Hazardous or toxic waste means any substance, 
waste, pollutant or contaminant now or hereafter included within such terms under any federal, 
state or local statute, ordinance, code, rule or regulation now existing or hereinafter enacted or 
amended. 

 
  If CONSULTANT encounters, or reasonably suspects that it has encountered, asbestos, or 

pollution, including soil contamination in the project area, CONSULTANT shall cease activity in 
said area and promptly notify the OWNER who shall proceed as set forth above. Unless 
otherwise specifically provided in ATTACHMENT A, the services to be provided by 
CONSULTANT do not include identification of asbestos or pollution, including soil 
contamination and CONSULTANT has no duty to identify or attempt to identify the same in the 
project area. 

 
 9. Provide such accounting, independent cost estimating and insurance counseling services as 

may be required for the Project, such legal services as OWNER may require or 
CONSULTANT may reasonably request with regard to legal issues pertaining to the Project 
and such auditing services as OWNER may require to ascertain how or for what purpose any 
Contractor has used the monies paid under the construction contract. 

 



 6 

 10. Provide such inspection services (except to the extent provided otherwise in ATTACHMENT 
A) as OWNER may require to ascertain that Contractor (s) are complying with any law, rule, 
regulation, ordinance, code or order applicable to their furnishing and performing the work. 

 
 11. Provide “record” drawings and specifications for all existing physical plants or facilities which 

are pertinent to the Project. 
 
 12. Provide written notice to CONSULTANT when the project has been financially closed-out by 

FAA. 
 
 13. Provide other services, materials, or data as may be set forth in ATTACHMENT A. 
 
B. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of information or services 

furnished by the OWNER. If CONSULTANT finds that any information or services furnished by the 
OWNER is in error or is inadequate for its purpose, CONSULTANT shall promptly notify the OWNER. 

 
ARTICLE 10. OPINIONS OF COST 
 
Opinions of probable project cost, construction cost, financial evaluations, feasibility studies, economic 
analyses of alternate solutions and utilitarian considerations of operations and maintenance costs provided for 
in ATTACHMENT A, a part hereof, are to be made on the basis of CONSULTANT’S experience and 
qualifications and represent CONSULTANT’S best judgement as an experienced and qualified design 
professional. It is recognized, however, that CONSULTANT does not have control over the cost of labor, 
material, equipment or services furnished by others or over market conditions or contractor’s methods of 
determining their prices, and that any evaluation of any facility to be constructed or reacquired, or work to be 
performed on the basis of CONSULTANT’S cost opinions, must of necessity, be speculative until completion 
of construction or acquisition. Accordingly, CONSULTANT cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, 
bids, or actual costs will not substantially vary from opinions, evaluations or studies submitted by 
CONSULTANT to OWNER hereunder. 
 
ARTICLE 11. CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
 
OWNER acknowledges that it is customary for the architect or engineer who is responsible for the preparation 
and furnishing of Drawings and Specifications and other construction-related documents to be employed to 
provide professional services during the Bidding and Construction Phases of the Project, (1) to interpret and 
clarify the documentation so furnished and to modify the same as circumstances revealed during bidding and 
construction may dictate, (2) in connection with acceptance of substitute or equal items of materials and 
equipment proposed by bidders and contractor(s), (3) in connection with approval of shop drawings and same 
submittals, and (4) as a result of and in response to CONSULTANT’S detecting in advance of performance of 
affected work inconsistencies or irregularities in such documentation. OWNER agrees that if CONSULTANT 
is not employed to provide such professional services during the Bidding (if the work is put out for bids) and 
the Construction Phases of the Project, CONSULTANT will not be responsible for, and OWNER shall 
indemnify and hold CONSULTANT (and CONSULTANT’S professional associates and consultants) harmless 
from, all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorneys’ fees arising out of, or resulting from, any 
interpretation, clarification, substitution acceptance, shop drawing or sample approval or modification of such 
documentation issued or carried out by OWNER or others. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be 
construed to release CONSULTANT (or CONSULTANT’S professional associates or consultants) from 
liability for failure to perform in accordance with professional standards any duty or responsibility which 
CONSULTANT has undertaken or assumed under this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 12. INSURANCE 
 
CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain insurance for protection from claims against it under workers’ 
compensation acts, claims for damages because of bodily injury including personal injury, sickness or disease 
or death of any and all employees or of any person other than such employees, and from claims for damages 
against it because of injury to or destruction of property including loss of use resulting therefrom. 
 



 7 

Also, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain professional liability insurance for protection from claims 
arising out of performance of professional services caused by any negligent act, error, or omission for which 
CONSULTANT is legally liable. However, CONSULTANT hereby states and the OWNER acknowledges, that 
CONSULTANT has no professional liability (errors and omissions) or other insurance, and is unable to 
reasonably obtain such insurance, for claims arising out of the performance or failure to perform professional 
services, including but not limited to the preparation of reports, designs, drawings and specifications, related 
to the investigation, detection, abatement, replacement, modification, removal or disposal of (1) pollutants or 
of (2) products, materials or processes containing asbestos. Pollutants herein under (1) above meaning any 
solid, liquid, gaseous, or thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke, vapor, soot, alkalis, chemicals and 
hazardous or toxic waste. Accordingly, the OWNER hereby agrees to bring no claim for non-negligent 
services, breach of contract, or other cause of action against CONSULTANT, its principals, employees, 
agents and consultants if such claim in any way arises out of the actual, alleged or threatened discharge, 
dispersal, release or escape of pollutants, or the investigation of or remedial work related to such pollutants or 
asbestos in the project. Certificates of insurance will be provided to the OWNER upon request. 
 
ARTICLE 13. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
The CONSULTANT in performance of work hereunder operates as an independent contractor and covenants 
and agrees that it will conduct itself consistent with such status, that is will neither hold itself out as nor claim 
to be an officer or employee of the OWNER by reason hereof, and that it will not by reason hereby, make any 
claim, demand or shall it apply for any right or privilege applicable to an officer or employee of the OWNER, 
including, but not limited to, worker’s compensation coverage, unemployment insurance benefits, social 
security coverage or retirement membership or credit. 
 
ARTICLE 14. FEDERAL AND STATE PARTICIPATION 
 
Work performed under this Agreement may be financed in part by State and Federal funds. However, 
payments to CONSULTANT will be made by the OWNER. 
 
The State of Minnesota and the United States are not parties to this Contract and no reference herein to the 
Mn/DOT, Office of Aeronautics, and to the FAA or any representatives thereof makes the State of Minnesota 
or the United States a party to the Contract. 
 
ARTICLE 15. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES 
 
The CONSULTANT warrants that no person or legal entity has been employed or retained to solicit or secure 
this contract upon an Agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee excepting bona-fide employees or bona-fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by 
CONSULTANT for the purpose of securing business. For breach or violation of this warranty, the OWNER 
shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or in its discretion to deduct from payment to 
CONSULTANT the full amount of each commission, percentages, brokerage, or contingent fee. 
 
ARTICLE 16. FEDERAL CONTRACT CLAUSES 
 
If this Agreement is to be financed in part by Federal funds, certain federally-required, contract clauses must 
be incorporated. These federally-required, contract clauses, included as ATTACHMENT C, are hereby 
incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement. The ATTACHMENT C incorporated is for Non-
Construction Contract of (check as appropriate): 
 
 (   )  $10,000 or less 

 (  )  $10,001 to $25,000 

 ( X )  $25,001 to $100,000 or 

 (   )  $100,001 and over 

 
The term “contractor” as used in said ATTACHMENT is understood to mean CONSULTANT. 
 



 8 

ARTICLE 17. ASSIGNMENT 
 
This Agreement, being intended to secure the personal service of the individuals employed by and through 
whom CONSULTANT performs work hereunder, shall not be assigned, sublet or transferred without written 
consent of the OWNER. 



 9 

ARTICLE 18. NOTICES 
 
All notices required by law or by this Agreement to be given to the CONSULTANT must be written and may 
be given personally or by depositing the same in the United States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to 
CONSULTANT at such premises and at the following address: 
 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. 
3535 Vadnais Center Drive 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55110 

 
All notices required or permitted to be given to the OWNER hereunder shall be given by United States mail, 
postage prepaid, and addressed to: 
 

 
Glenn Anderson 

City Administrator 
101 Lake Street South 

Mora, Minnesota 55051 
 
Notice shall be deemed given as of the date said notice is deposited in the mail or personally delivered. 
 
The parties must notify each other promptly in the event of a change in name or address. 
 
ARTICLE 19. CONTROLLING LAW 
 
This Agreement is to be governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota. 
 

 

ARTICLE 20. SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first above 
written. 
 

City of Mora, MN 

 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. 

OWNER  CONSULTANT 

     

By   By  

     

Attest    

 
 
 
Attachments: A, B, C 
 



Attachment A 

Mora Municipal Airport (JMR) 

2023 Triggering Event Master Plan (TEMP) and 

Airport Layout Plan (ALP) Update 

Scope of Work 

 

Project Overview: 

Runway 17/35 is the only paved runway at the Mora Municipal Airport (JMR) and is 4,794 feet in length 
and 75 feet wide. The runway was last rehabilitated in 2007. In 2007, Runway 17/35 was extended by 
800 feet to the north, from 4,000 feet to 4,794 feet. The Environmental Assessment and construction of 
the runway extension were both funded with federal Airport Improvement Program funds. The runway 
extension was based on two components. The first reason was to avoid the creation of non-intersecting 
runways prior to construction of crosswind Runway 11/29, which occurred in 2017 (the runway opened in 
2018). The second reason was to accommodate the existing business aircraft utilizing JMR including a 
Cessna Citation jet, the Citation 525. Since 2007, several crack repair endeavors have been completed to 
seal the cracks and joints and prevent accelerated deterioration due to the presence of moisture in the 
typical section.  

A Master Plan update project was completed in 2018 documenting the existing and future users of the 
airport and the type of aircraft regularly operating at JMR. The critical aircraft at the time of the Master 
Plan update project was determined to be a King Air 200. This data will be used to supplement the 
information gathered for this project.  

The last pavement condition inspection and report for the Mora Municipal Airport was completed in 2020. 
The report indicated the southern 4,000 feet of Runway 17/35 is in fair condition with a PCI of 70 and the 
northern 800 feet is in satisfactory condition with a PCI of 75. Some of the major pavement issues include 
large longitudinal and transverse cracking, raveling, and weathering. The same inspection report provided 
an estimated drop in PCI/year to be 2.3 points for the southern portion of the runway. Using that 
information, the calculated 2023 PCI is 63, and in 2025 at the proposed time of reconstruction, it would be 
58. SEH feels the drop of PCI/year will increase over the next few years due to the presence of additional 
moisture resulting in an even lower PCI at the time of reconstruction.  

The purpose of this Triggering Event Master Plan (TEMP) is to document the runway inventory, complete 
a Runway Safety Area (RSA) inventory, identify non-standard runway conditions, update the aviation 
forecasts, identify critical aircraft, and complete a runway length analysis to validate current aeronautical 
needs. The study will include runway alternatives, outline an implementation plan, and evaluate phasing 
alternatives to determine the implementation feasibility of the proposed runway reconstruction project.   

Project Deliverables – The project deliverables of this scope include the following: 

1. Triggering Event Master Plan Report 

2. ALP Update 

This work scope includes: 

Study Element 1: Project Initiation, Meetings, Coordination and Administration 

Task 1.1 – Project Scoping and Contract Development - Short Elliott Hendrickson (SEH) will 
coordinate with the City, the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and MnDOT Aeronautics 
to develop the appropriate work scope, define tasks, lines of communication and establish 
project goals and objectives. Project fees will be prepared using the final Scope of Work. An 
agreement will be developed from the Final Scope of Work and approved fees.   

Task 1.2 – Meetings – SEH will maintain continuous contact with the City (sponsor), MnDOT, and 
FAA through e-mail, regular mail, phone, working papers and deliverables. The City, MnDOT, 



and FAA will have the opportunity to review and comment on the project deliverables. These 
subtasks include time to prepare, coordinate, meet, and build consensus. The following 
meetings are included.   

Task 1.2.1 – Agency Meetings – This task includes meetings by the SEH planning team, 
MnDOT Aeronautics, FAA, airport staff, and other individuals and agencies as needed, 
to discuss the status of the project, receive feedback and any other related items. Up 
to three (3) meetings are anticipated. Meeting topics will include reviews chapters of 
the Triggering Event Master Plan and Draft ALP update as well as topic-specific 
meetings to discuss issues related to the project.  The meetings may cover the 
following topics or decision points:  

1. Inventory, forecasts, critical aircraft;  

2. Runway needs and alternatives 

3. Construction phasing & implementation plan 

These meetings will be accomplished in person at City Hall and/or via video 
conference call.   

Task 1.2.2 – Airport Staff Coordination Meetings –This task includes SEH-Airport staff 
coordination meetings to provide project update and obtain input. Three (3) meetings 
anticipated.  The meetings may cover the following topics or decision points:  

1. Inventory, forecasts, critical aircraft;  

2. Runway needs and alternatives; 

3. Construction phasing & implementation plan 

Task 1.2.3 – Airport Tenant Phone Calls – This task includes SEH staff setting up phone call 
discussions with potential critical aircraft owners to determine the number of operations 
and type of aircraft operating at JMR. This task includes up to 15 phone calls. Call logs 
will be kept documenting the conversations completed through this process. The 
documentation will be included in the TEMP report.  

Task 1.2.4 – Airport Tenant Meeting – SEH will hold one meeting at the airport with tenants 
to discuss the project phasing and impacts to the airfield.  

Task 1.2.5 – Airport Advisory Board Meetings – This task includes attendance at Airport 
Advisory Board meetings to provide project update presentations to the Board. Two 
(2) meetings are anticipated. The meetings may cover the following topics or decision 
points:  

1. Runway needs and alternatives;  

2. Construction phasing & implementation plan 

Task 1.3 – Project Administration – SEH will provide project administration and management 
services as required to complete the project within the conditions of this agreement. 
Administration and management duties will include preparation of a budget and schedule, 
holding internal project meetings to monitor progress and budget, and preparing monthly 
invoices.  SEH will prepare and submit FAA Quarterly Reports.    

Task 1.4 – Quality Assurance and Control – SEH will implement and carry-out internal quality 
control for the project. Independent peer review will be conducted at each phase of the 
project to check content and product quality. Throughout the project, SEH will be responsible 
for draft and final proof-reading, final word processing, editing, graphics, reports and other 
products included in this Scope of Work. 

Deliverables: Project scope, agreement, and meetings.  

Study Element 2: Triggering Event Master Plan Report 

Task 2.1 – Runway 17/35 Inventory - This task includes an inventory of Runway 17/35’s facilities 
including pavement type, age, condition, and history; lighting; pavement marking; surrounding 
taxiway system; NAVAIDs and their respective ownership; and other relevant airport inventory 



features will also be noted. The Master Plan inventory data will be verified for any changes 
since 2018.  In addition, the built and natural environment surrounding and relevant to Runway 
17/35 will be documented. Any non-standard conditions will be documented during the 
inventory process. It is anticipated these items will be addressed during the runway 
reconstruction project.  

Task 2.1.1 –Aquatic Resource Delineation – This task will include completion of an aquatic 
resource delineation in the areas impacted by the array of alternatives.  The formal  
delineation will assist in completion of the future NEPA document associated with the 
runway reconstruction project. The aquatic resource delineation area will include the 
area between the runway and parallel taxiway as well as other potentially impacted 
areas surrounding the runway environment (RSA, ROFA, etc.). The delineation will 
identify all resources including wetlands and tributary and linear ditch features. 
Documentation and photos of the culverts under the runway including the condition 
and size of the culverts will be included in the narrative. The Ordinary High-Water Mark 
and elevation of any tributary in the runway environmental will be noted and figures will 
clearly separate tributary information versus wetland information. The results of the 
delineation will be shared with the FAA, the Army Corps of Engineers and the Technical 
Evaluation Panel for the Wetland Conservation Act through MnDOT.     

Task 2.1.2 – Runway Safety Area (RSA) Determination – Two SEH airport staff members 
will complete a site visit to inventory the existing Runway 17/35 environment on the 
airfield. A topographical survey will be completed, during the site visit, over the length 
of Runway 17/35, including the RSA off each runway end. The survey will cross section 
the runway at 100-foot intervals and out to the limits of the RSA on each side. This task 
includes time for a SEH airport staff member to complete a RSA inventory, 
documenting objects in the RSA including the frangibility of the objects.  

 The collected data will be used to determine what areas, if any, do not meet RSA 
standards. The RSA evaluation will identify and document practicable RSA 
improvement alternatives for the FAA to consider. The RSA determination form will be 
completed following FAA Order 5200.8 Appendix 1 and FAA Standard Operating 
Procedure 8.0. The completed form will be sent to the FAA ADO for their records or 
required action based on the outcome of the survey. 

 RSA inventory documentation will also be submitted to the FAA for Runway 11/29 
based on as-built survey data. No new survey information will be gathered for this 
submittal.  

Task 2.2 – Activity Forecasts and Critical Aircraft Determination – SEH will prepare independent 
forecasts of based aircraft, operations, and the critical aircraft for FAA review and approval. 
The FAA will provide data from www.basedaircraft.com after it has been updated by the City. 
The existing critical aircraft for runway length, width and pavement strength will be documented 
in this task.  The determination of the critical aircraft will include an evaluation of existing airport 
use and use projected within the next five years. Airport staff will provide SEH any available 
data for historical operations. SEH will document discussions with tenants, airport businesses 
and transient users pertaining to existing and projected future operations of aircraft that may 
influence runway length as met with through Task 1.2.3. Operations data available through 
FAA’s TFMSC system will be utilized to document IFR operations. These forecasts will take 
into consideration the information provided during the 2018 Master Plan update. Table 4-1 from 
FAA Order 5090.5, Formulation of the National Plan of Integrated Airport Systems (NPIAS) and 
the Airports Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP), will be reviewed in association with the data 
gathered to consider the appropriate methods for forecast evaluations.     

Task 2.3 – Runway Length Analysis and Alternatives – Based on the activity forecasts, the length 
of Runway 17/35 will be evaluated. The runway length and width needs of the critical aircraft, 
or group of critical aircraft, will be documented in this task. The operator(s) of these aircraft will 
be consulted as aircraft operators may justify or require additional runway length or width.  

http://www.basedaircraft.com/


This task will evaluate the cost to reconstruct the runway at the existing length and width 
compared to the runway length justified in this task. The FAA can only fund a project to 
rehabilitate (not reconstruct) an airfield facility that exceeds FAA standards.    

Alternatives evaluating the selected runway length and width will be completed in this task. It 
is anticipated up to four (4) runway length and width alternatives will be evaluated. Each 
alternative will include consideration for publishing a future non-precision instrument approach 
to Runway 17.  

For each alternative, the ability to meet FAA design standards, environmental impacts and cost 
will be evaluated and documented. This includes all runway action items documented during 
the RSA inventory process (see Task 2.1). This task will select the existing justified length and 
width for reconstruction of Runway 17/35. Should the City desire a different length or width be 
reconstructed other than the selected alternative, local costs will be evaluated as well. 

Task 2.4 – Implementation Feasibility Study 

Task 2.4.1 – Construction Phasing – This task includes a high-level overview on phasing and 
material options to complete the reconstruction of the runway in a manner that reduces 
impacts to airport users. Potential strategies include use of the parallel taxiway as a 
runway, night work, smaller phases, and displaced thresholds. As part of this task, 
options for contractor storage areas and batch plant locations will be identified, as well 
as potential haul routes to and from the project areas. Estimated project times for 
completion of the phases will be developed to determine the potential impact to airport 
users. Construction phasing will also consider local, state, and federal funding sources 
and availability. 

Task 2.4.2 – Modifications to Design Standards and Reimbursable Agreements – Based 
on known information, any potential modification to design standards will be identified.  
Also, if a need for reimbursable agreements is identified, they will be documented 
through this task.  

Task 2.4.3 – Project Schedule – This task includes development of a high-level preliminary 
schedule to include milestones such as initiation of preliminary engineering and an 
Engineer’s Design Report, final design for each phase, and years of construction. If 
any reimbursable agreements or modifications to design standards are identified, the 
process for each will be included within the project schedule. 

Task 2.4.4 – Project Budget – This task includes developing a preliminary project budget, 
including engineering and construction, for each phase of the project. The budget will 
include funding sources and local contribution. 

Task 2.5 – Environmental Overview (EO) – This task will include an environmental overview of the 
proposed Runway 17/35 reconstruction project.  A formal purpose and need statement for the 
project will be developed.   

The EO section will identify potential environmental concerns to the built and natural 
environment that may need to be taken into consideration with the selected runway 
reconstruction alternative. Not all impact categories identified through the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) will be evaluated. However, if the selected alternative has 
the potential to impact one of these categories, then the general potential impacts to that 
category will be discussed. Noise analysis is not included in this scope of work. No field surveys 
other than wetland delineations are included in this scope. Any potential environmental impacts 
will be identified through use of existing mapping, aerial photography and other readily 
available federal, state, regional and local studies and maps.   

This task will also document the required NEPA review for the Runway 17/35 reconstruction 
project.   

Task 2.6 – Implementation Plan – A CIP for the Runway 17/35 reconstruction project will be 
developed. The CIP will include a proposed phasing plan for the project and cost estimates for 



each phase. This CIP will be presented within the current 20-year airport CIP to depict how the 
project(s) relate to other airport projects. For the projects associated with the runway 
reconstruction, this task will include estimated project costs, a prioritization discussion, year of 
implementation or planning levels and events that would support project development and 
funding as well as projects that should be linked together. Estimated costs will be expressed in 
2023 dollars with no adjustments for inflation. A funding plan will be developed for the proposed 
runway improvements. The results of this analysis will be presented in a CIP format consistent 
with MnDOT and FAA requirements. 

 As part of this task, a simple narrative report summarizing the implementation plan as it relates 
to the project costs and proposed phasing schedule for the reconstruction of Runway 17/35 will 
be developed.  It is anticipated that this document will assist in the pursuit and management of 
funding sources, as well as develop a process for securing dollars for the local contribution. 

Task 2.7 – Executive Summary – A brief executive summary of the Triggering Event Master Plan 
will be developed to summarize the findings and recommendations of the study.  

Deliverables: Draft chapters will be provided in electronic format to the City, MnDOT and the FAA 
for review meetings.  Printed copies will be available upon request.   

Five (5) printed copies and one (1) PDF of the final draft Triggering Event Master Plan will be 
submitted to the City, two (2) printed copies and one (1) PDF will be submitted to MnDOT, and 
two (2) printed copies and one (1) PDF will be submitted to the FAA.   

Study Element 3: Airport Layout Plan Update 

The following changes will be made to the Airport Layout Plan sheets identified below. No additional 
changes will be made. The intent is to specifically update the ALP to depict any changes to the runway 
system that result from the TEMP. The 2018 ALP update is currently going through FAA review. It is 
anticipated this ALP will be conditionally approved prior to the completion of this task. The ALP update 
includes potential airfield layout (runway & taxiway) changes, related design standards, related 
infrastructure (i.e. runway NAVAIDs, taxilanes connecting to the taxiway system), future property, etc. No 
other airport facilities will be evaluated or updated.   

Task 3.1 –Airport Layout Plan Set (Sheets 1-12)- This sheet will be updated to reflect changes to 
the runway system based on the outcomes of the TEMP.   

Task 3.2 [OPTIONAL] – Airport Layout Plan Set (Sheets 1-12) – RUNWAY THRESHOLD 
CHANGE – Should either threshold to Runway 17/35 change, the ALP set will be updated to 
reflect the changes to the runway system. The Runway 17/35 plan and profile sheets will also 
be updated to include the appropriate information including the results of the obstruction 
analysis based on the new threshold location.  

Deliverables:  Airport Layout Plan Update. The final set will be delivered to the FAA, MnDOT and the City. 
Electronic plans will be prepared using AutoCAD and provided on CD.  

Draft and review copies will be submitted via PDF format only.  

Two (2) 11”x17” printed copies and one (1) CD with PDFs of the final ALP will be submitted to 
the City. One (1) CD with PDFs of the final ALP will be provided to the FAA for their records. 
One (1) 22” x 34” printed copies, one (1) 11”x17” printed copy, and one (1) CD with PDFs of 
the final ALP will be submitted to MnDOT. Electronic copies of the final ALP cad files will be 
submitted to the City, MnDOT, and FAA.   

 

 



Task 

No. Task Description Senior Planner Planner

Project 

Engineer Scientist GIS

FAA Doc. 

Specialist

Admin 

Technician Task Total

1.0 Project Initiation, Meetings, Coordination and Admin

1.1 Project Scoping/Contract Development 4 2 2 8

1.2 Meetings

1.2.1 Agency Meetings 15 15

1.2.2 Airport Staff Coordiantion Meetings 18 18

1.2.3 Airport Tenant Phone Calls 10 10

1.2.4 Airport Tenant Meeting 2 2

1.2.5 Airport Advisory Board Meetings 8 8

1.3 Project Administration 12 10 2 24

1.4 Quality Assurance and Control 10 10

2.0 Triggering Event Master Plan Report

2.1 Runway 17/35 Inventory 2 2 4 8

2.1.1 Aquatic Resource Delineation 30 4 34

2.1.2 RSA Determination 4 4 4 12

2.2 Activity Forecasts/Critical Aircraft Determination 2 10 12

2.3 Runway Length Analysis and Alternatives 2 20 4 26

2.4 Implementation Feasibility Study

2.4.1 Construction Phasing 2 6 4 12

2.4.2 Modifications to Design Standards 4 4 4 12

2.4.3 Project Schedule 2 2 4

2.4.4 Project Budget 1 6 7

2.5 Environmental Overview 6 6 12

2.6 Implementation Plan 2 6 6 14

2.7 Executive Summary 2 4 4 10

3.0 Airport Layout Plan  

3.1 Airport Layout Plan Set (Sheets 1-12) 2 10 10 22

Total hours per labor category 81 81 32 36 30 12 8 280

Optional Tasks

3.2 ALP Update - Runway Threshold Change 2 10 15 27

Total hours per labor category 2 10 0 0 15 0 0 27

TOTAL LABOR COSTS:

Hours Rate Extension

81 $72.19 $5,847.19

Planner 81 $48.99 $3,968.43

Project Engineer 32 $50.30 $1,609.44

36 $36.66 $1,319.60

GIS 30 $48.99 $1,469.79

FAA Doc. Specialist 12 $42.90 $514.84

8 $34.07 $272.58

Total Direct Labor Costs: 280 $15,001.86

Labor and Administrative Overhead $25,803.21

Fee (15%) $6,120.76

Total Labor Costs - Without Optional Task $46,925.84

TOTAL EXPENSES:

Direct Expenses Quantity Rate Extension

Mileage 1794 $0.65 $1,166.10

Computer Usage 280 $5.80 $1,624.00

Airport Layout Plan Reproductions (12 sheets) 4 $30.00 $120.00

Public Open House Presentation Materials 1 $100.00 $100.00

TEMP Reports 9 $25.00 $225.00

Total Expenses $3,235.10

SUMMARY WITHOUT OPTIONAL TASK:

Estimated Total $50,160.94

Total $50,200.00

LABOR COSTS - OPTIONAL TASK:

Hours Rate Extension

2 $72.19 $144.38

Planner 10 $48.99 $489.93

Project Engineer 0 $50.30 $0.00

0 $36.66 $0.00

GIS 15 $48.99 $734.90

FAA Doc. Specialist 0 $42.90 $0.00

0 $34.07 $0.00

Total Direct Labor Costs: 27 $1,369.20

Labor and Administrative Overhead $2,355.02

Fee (15%) $558.63

Total Labor Costs - Optional Task Only $4,282.85

EXPENSES - OPTIONAL TASK

Direct Expenses Quantity Rate Extension

Computer Usage 27 $5.80 $156.60

Airport Layout Plan Reproductions (12 sheets) 4 $30.00 $120.00

Total Expenses $276.60

SUMMARY OPTIONAL TASK ONLY:

Estimated Total $4,559.45

Total $4,600.00

Labor Category

Labor Category

Scientist

Admin Technician

Admin Technician

Scientist

Senior Planner 

ESTIMATED FEES AND EXPENSES

ATTACHMENT B

Triggering Event Master Plan & ALP Update

Mora Municipal Airport (JMR)

Mora, MN

Senior Planner 



ATTACHMENT C 
ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS 

The Contractor must maintain an acceptable cost accounting system. The Contractor agrees to provide the sponsor, the 
Federal Aviation Administration, and the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized 
representatives, access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the contractor which are directly pertinent to 
the specific contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. The Contractor agrees to 
maintain all books, records and reports required under this contract for a period of not less than three years after final 
payment is made and all pending matters are closed. 

BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS 

Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the contractor or its subcontractors may result in the 
suspension or termination of this contract or such other action that may be necessary to enforce the rights of the parties 
of this agreement.   

Owner will provide Consultant written notice that describes the nature of the breach and corrective actions the 
Consultant must undertake in order to avoid termination of the contract.  Owner reserves the right to withhold payments 
to Contractor until such time the Contractor corrects the breach or the Owner elects to terminate the contract. The 
Owner’s notice will identify a specific date by which the Consultant must correct the breach.  Owner may proceed with 
termination of the contract if the Consultant fails to correct the breach by deadline indicated in the Owner’s notice. 

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder are in 
addition to, and not a limitation of, any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. 

GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS 

The contractor agrees to comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders and such rules as are promulgated to ensure 
that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from 
participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal assistance.  

This provision binds the contractor and subtier contractors from the bid solicitation period through the completion of the 
contract. This provision is in addition to that required of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

Title VI Solicitation Notice: 

The Sponsor, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. §§ 
2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract 
entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity 
to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or 
national origin in consideration for an award. 

Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter 
referred to as the “contractor”) agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations:  The contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the Title VI List 
of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities, as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein 
incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

2. Non-discrimination:  The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will not 
discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, 
including procurements of materials and leases of equipment.  The contractor will not participate directly or 
indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including employment 
practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21.  

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment:  In all solicitations, 
either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, 
including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be 



notified by the contractor of the contractor’s obligations under this contract and the Nondiscrimination Acts And 
Authorities on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.   

4. Information and Reports:  The contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Acts, the 
Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other 
sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the sponsor or the Federal Aviation 
Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities and 
instructions.  Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or 
refuses to furnish the information, the contractor will so certify to the sponsor or the Federal Aviation 
Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of a contractor’s noncompliance with the Non-discrimination 
provisions of this contract, the sponsor will impose such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Aviation 
Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

a. Withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies; and/or 

b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part. 

6. Incorporation of Provisions:  The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in every 
subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the 
Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto.  The contractor will take action with respect to any 
subcontract or procurement as the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means of 
enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the contractor becomes 
involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the contractor 
may request the sponsor to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the sponsor.  In addition, the 
contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter 
referred to as the “contractor”) agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; including 
but not limited to: 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of race, color, national origin);  

• 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs of The Department of Transportation—
Effectuation of Title VI of The Civil Rights Act of 1964);  

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), 
(prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or 
Federal-aid programs and projects);  

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27; 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of age); 

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits 
discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);  

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, by expanding the definition of the terms “programs or activities” to include all of the programs or activities of 
the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally 
funded or not); 

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of 
disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public 
accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 – 12189) as implemented by Department of 
Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38; 



• The Federal Aviation Administration’s Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex); 

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-
Income Populations, which ensures non-discrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, 
policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority 
and low-income populations; 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting 
agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency 
(LEP).  To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have 
meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100); 

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating because of 
sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq). 

CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 

Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, and regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act 
(42 U.S.C. § 740-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). The 
Contractor agrees to report any violation to the Owner immediately upon discovery. The Owner assumes responsibility 
for notifying the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Federal Aviation Administration.  

Contractor must include this requirement in all subcontracts that exceeds $150,000. 

CERTIFICATION OF OFFERER/BIDDER REGARDING DEBARMENT 

By submitting a bid/proposal under this solicitation, the bidder or offeror certifies that neither it nor its principals are 
presently debarred or suspended by any Federal department or agency from participation in this transaction. 

CERTIFICATION OF LOWER TIER CONTRACTORS REGARDING DEBARMENT 

The successful bidder, by administering each lower tier subcontract that exceeds $25,000 as a “covered transaction”, 
must verify each lower tier participant of a “covered transaction” under the project is not presently debarred or otherwise 
disqualified from participation in this federally assisted project.  The successful bidder will accomplish this by: 

1. Checking the System for Award Management at website:  http://www.sam.gov 
2. Collecting a certification statement similar to the Certificate Regarding Debarment and Suspension (Bidder or 

Offeror), above. 
3. Inserting a clause or condition in the covered transaction with the lower tier contract 

If the FAA later determines that a lower tier participant failed to disclose to a higher tier participant that it was excluded 
or disqualified at the time it entered the covered transaction, the FAA may pursue any available remedies, including 
suspension and debarment of the non-compliant participant.  

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES 

Contract Assurance (§ 26.13) - The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 
CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these 
requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other 
remedy, as the recipient deems appropriate. 

Prompt Payment (§26.29) - The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for 
satisfactory performance of its contract no later than {specify number} days from the receipt of each payment the prime 
contractor receives from {Name of recipient}. The prime contractor agrees further to return retainage payments to each 
subcontractor within {specify the same number as above} days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed. 
Any delay or postponement of payment from the above referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following 
written approval of the {Name of Recipient}. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors. 



A 1 . 1 . 1  R AC E / G E N D E R  N E U T R AL  L AN G U AG E  

The requirements of 49 CFR part 26 apply to this contract. It is the policy of the Sponsor to practice nondiscrimination 
based on race, color, sex or national origin in the award or performance of this contract. The Owner encourages 
participation by all firms qualifying under this solicitation regardless of business size or ownership.  

TEXTING WHEN DRIVING 

In accordance with Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving" 
(10/1/2009) and DOT Order 3902.10 “Text Messaging While Driving” (12/30/2009), the FAA encourages recipients of 
Federal grant funds to adopt and enforce safety policies that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies to 
ban text messaging while driving when performing work related to a grant or sub-grant.  

In support of this initiative, the Owner encourages the Contractor to promote policies and initiatives for its employees 
and other work personnel that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies that ban text messaging while 
driving motor vehicles while performing work activities associated with the project.  The Contractor must include the 
substance of this clause in all sub-tier contracts exceeding $3,500 and involve driving a motor vehicle in performance of 
work activities associated with the project. 

ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS 

Contractor and Subcontractor agree to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency as 
contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 
U.S.C. 6201et seq). 

FEDERAL FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT 

All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the provisions of 
29 CFR part 201, the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), with the same force and effect as if given in full text.  
The FLSA sets minimum wage, overtime pay, recordkeeping, and child labor standards for full and part time workers. 

The Consultant has full responsibility to monitor compliance to the referenced statute or regulation.  The Consultant 
must address any claims or disputes that arise from this requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor – Wage 
and Hour Division 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 

The bidder or offeror certifies by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and 
belief, that: 

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Bidder or Offeror, to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of 
any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.  

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing 
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee 
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.  

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all 
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or 
entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 
section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty 
of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 



OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT 

All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the requirements of 
29 CFR Part 1910 with the same force and effect as if given in full text.  Contractor must provide a work environment 
that is free from recognized hazards that may cause death or serious physical harm to the employee. The Contractor 
retains full responsibility to monitor its compliance and their subcontractor’s compliance with the applicable requirements 
of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (20 CFR Part 1910).  Contractor must address any claims or disputes 
that pertain to a referenced requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor – Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration.  

RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS 

Contracts or agreements that include the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work must provide 
for the rights of the Federal Government and the Owner in any resulting invention as established by 37 CFR part 401, 
Rights to Inventions Made by Non-profit Organizations and Small Business Firms under Government Grants, Contracts, 
and Cooperative Agreements.  This contract incorporates by reference the patent and inventions rights as specified 
within in the 37 CFR §401.14.  Contractor must include this requirement in all sub-tier contracts involving experimental, 
developmental or research work. 

CERTIFICATION OF OFFERER/BIDDER REGARDING TAX DELINQUENCY AND FELONY CONVICTIONS 

The applicant must complete the following two certification statements. The applicant must indicate its current status as 
it relates to tax delinquency and felony conviction by inserting a checkmark () in the space following the applicable 
response. The applicant agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation, it will incorporate this provision 
for certification in all lower tier subcontracts. 

Certifications 

a) The applicant represents that it is (   ) is not (  ) a corporation that has any unpaid Federal tax 
liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been 
exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an 
agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability. 

b) The applicant represents that it is (   ) is not (  ) is not a corporation that was  convicted of a 
criminal violation under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months. 

Note 

If an applicant responds in the affirmative to either of the above representations, the applicant is ineligible to receive an 
award unless the sponsor has received notification from the agency suspension and debarment official (SDO) that the 
SDO has considered suspension or debarment and determined that further action is not required to protect the 
Government’s interests.  The applicant therefore must provide information to the owner about its tax liability or conviction 
to the Owner, who will then notify the FAA Airports District Office, which will then notify the agency’s SDO to facilitate 
completion of the required considerations before award decisions are made. 

Term Definitions 

Felony conviction: Felony conviction means a conviction within the preceding twentyfour 

(24) months of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law and includes 

conviction of an offense defined in a section of the U.S. code that specifically classifies 

the offense as a felony and conviction of an offense that is classified as a felony under 18 

U.S.C. § 3559. 

Tax Delinquency: A tax delinquency is any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and 
administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to 
an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability. 

 

Termination for Convenience (Professional Services)  



The Owner may, by written notice to the Consultant, terminate this Agreement for its convenience and without cause or 
default on the part of Consultant. Upon receipt of the notice of termination, except as explicitly directed by the Owner, 
the Contractor must immediately discontinue all services affected. 

Upon termination of the Agreement, the Consultant must deliver to the Owner all data, surveys, models, drawings, 
specifications, reports, maps, photographs, estimates, summaries, and other documents and materials prepared by the 
Engineer under this contract, whether complete or partially complete.  

Owner agrees to make just and equitable compensation to the Consultant for satisfactory work completed up through 
the date the Consultant receives the termination notice.  Compensation will not include anticipated profit on non-
performed services. 

Owner further agrees to hold Consultant harmless for errors or omissions in documents that are incomplete as a result 
of the termination action under this clause. 

Termination for Default (Professional Services)  

Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause if the other party fails to fulfill its obligations that are essential to the 
completion of the work per the terms and conditions of the Agreement. The party initiating the termination action must 
allow the breaching party an opportunity to dispute or cure the breach.  

The terminating party must provide the breaching party [7] days advance written notice of its intent to terminate the 
Agreement. The notice must specify the nature and extent of the breach, the conditions necessary to cure the breach, 
and the effective date of the termination action.  The rights and remedies in this clause are in addition to any other rights 
and remedies provided by law or under this agreement. 

a) Termination by Owner: The Owner may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part, for the failure of the 
Consultant to: 
1. Perform the services within the time specified in this contract or by Owner approved extension; 

2. Make adequate progress so as to endanger satisfactory performance of the Project; 

3. Fulfill the obligations of the Agreement that are essential to the completion of the Project. 

Upon receipt of the notice of termination, the Consultant must immediately discontinue all services affected unless the 
notice directs otherwise.  Upon termination of the Agreement, the Consultant must deliver to the Owner all data, 
surveys, models, drawings, specifications, reports, maps, photographs, estimates, summaries, and other documents 
and materials prepared by the Engineer under this contract, whether complete or partially complete.  

Owner agrees to make just and equitable compensation to the Consultant for satisfactory work completed up through 
the date the Consultant receives the termination notice.  Compensation will not include anticipated profit on non-
performed services. 

Owner further agrees to hold Consultant harmless for errors or omissions in documents that are incomplete as a 
result of the termination action under this clause. 

If, after finalization of the termination action, the Owner determines the Consultant was not in default of the 
Agreement, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the Owner issued the termination for the 
convenience of the Owner. 

b) Termination by Consultant: The Consultant may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part, if the Owner: 
1. Defaults on its obligations under this Agreement; 

2. Fails to make payment to the Consultant in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; 

3. Suspends the Project for more than [180] days due to reasons beyond the control of the Consultant. 

Upon receipt of a notice of termination from the Consultant, Owner agrees to cooperate with Consultant for the 
purpose of terminating the agreement or portion thereof, by mutual consent.  If Owner and Consultant cannot reach 
mutual agreement on the termination settlement, the Consultant may, without prejudice to any rights and remedies it 
may have, proceed with terminating all or parts of this Agreement based upon the Owner’s breach of the contract. 

In the event of termination due to Owner breach, the Engineer is entitled to invoice Owner and to receive full 
payment for all services performed or furnished in accordance with this Agreement and all justified reimbursable 
expenses incurred by the Consultant through the effective date of termination action. Owner agrees to hold 



Consultant harmless for errors or omissions in documents that are incomplete as a result of the termination action 
under this clause. 

TRADE RESTRICTION CERTIFICATION 

By submission of an offer, the Offeror certifies that with respect to this solicitation and any resultant contract, the Offeror 
- 

a.   is not owned or controlled by one or more citizens of a foreign country included in the list of countries that 
discriminate against U.S. firms as published by the Office of the United States Trade Representative (U.S.T.R.); 

b.   has not knowingly entered into any contract or subcontract for this project with a person that is a citizen or 
national of a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published by 
the U.S.T.R; and  

c.   has not entered into any subcontract for any product to be used on the Federal on the project that is produced in 
a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the U.S.T.R. 

This certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United States of America and the making 
of a false, fictitious, or fraudulent certification may render the maker subject to prosecution under Title 18, United States 
Code, Section 1001. 

The Offeror/Contractor must provide immediate written notice to the Owner if the Offeror/Contractor learns that its 
certification or that of a subcontractor was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances.  The Contractor must require subcontractors provide immediate written notice to the Contractor if at any 
time it learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

Unless the restrictions of this clause are waived by the Secretary of Transportation in accordance with 49 CFR 30.17, no 
contract shall be awarded to an Offeror or subcontractor:  

(1)  who is owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country included on the list of countries 
that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the U.S.T.R. or  

(2) whose subcontractors are owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country on such 
U.S.T.R. list or  

(3)  who incorporates in the public works project any product of a foreign country on such U.S.T.R. list; 

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render, 
in good faith, the certification required by this provision.  The knowledge and information of a contractor is not required 
to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

The Offeror agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation, it will incorporate this provision for 
certification without modification in in all lower tier subcontracts. The contractor may rely on the certification of a 
prospective subcontractor that it is not a firm from a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate 
against U.S. firms as published by U.S.T.R, unless the Offeror has knowledge that the certification is erroneous. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when making an award.  If it is later 
determined that the Contractor or subcontractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, the Federal Aviation 
Administration may direct through the Owner cancellation of the contract or subcontract for default at no cost to the 
Owner or the FAA. 

VETERAN’S PREFERENCE 

In the employment of labor (excluding executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), the contractor and all sub-
tier contractors must give preference to covered veterans as defined within Title 49 United States Code Section 47112.  
Covered veterans include Vietnam-era veterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-Iraq war veterans, disabled 
veterans, and small business concerns (as defined by 15 U.S.C. 632) owned and controlled by disabled veterans.  This 
preference only applies when there are covered veterans readily available and qualified to perform the work to which the 
employment relates. 



Item No. 8f 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: April 18th, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Joseph Kohlgraf, Public Works Director  
RE: Airport Runway Grant Application Submittal Approval 

 
SUMMARY 
 Acceptance of Submittal of Grant Application for Runway Planning Project. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 The Mora Municipal Airport is currently due for Runway improvements laid out in the Airport CIP.  
This project is already in the works and are currently looking for approval for the grant application 
submittal by SEH to proceed with the Runway Planning Project.  
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 
Accept grant application submittal by SEH for the Runway Planning Study. This will provide needed funds from 
3rd party. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Staff recommends moving forward with the grant application submittal by SEH for Runway Planning. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments; none 
 



Item No. 8g 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: April 18th, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Joseph Kohlgraf, Public Works Director  
RE: Airport Taxi Lane Grant Application approval 

 
SUMMARY 
 Acceptance of Submittal of Grant Application for Taxi Lane Reconstruction. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 The Mora Municipal Airport is currently due to taxi lane improvements laid out in the Airport CIP.  This 
project is already in the works and are currently looking for approval for the grant application by SEH 
to proceed with the Airport Taxi Lane Project.  
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 
Accept grant application submittal by SEH for taxi lane construction project will provide needed funds from 3rd 
party. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Staff recommends moving forward with the grant application submittal by SEH. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments; none 
 



Item No. 8h 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: April 18th, 2023 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Joseph Kohlgraf, Public Works Director  
RE: Airport Fuel System Contract Proposal SEH  

 
SUMMARY 
 Acceptance of Fuel System Repair Contract with SEH. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 The Mora Municipal Airport is currently dealing with a out of date fuel system that needs repairs due 
to age and material make-up.  The system has been repaired multiple times and is needing a complete 
replacement to maintain the system and keep it in use.  This has been a project that has been budgeted 
for in the past and has seen cost increases.  Staff has worked with SEH to provide needed assistance 
in designing the fuel system upgrade.  Attached you will find a proposal from SEH for the project.  This 
project has been in the CIP and needs completion before the taxi lane construction project to be 
beneficial for cost savings. 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

1. Move forward with contract acceptance with SEH for the Fuel System Repair Project.  This is currently 
in the budget. 

2. Do not accept the contract agreement. This will affect grant opportunities and project costs. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Staff recommends accepting Fuel System Contract Agreement with SEH 
 
 
 
 
Attachments; 2023 Fuel Systems Contract-SEH 
 



 1 

 ARCHITECT/ENGINEER AGREEMENT 
 Between 

City of Mora, Minnesota 

(OWNER) 

and 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. 

(CONSULTANT) 

for 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this _______ day of ____________________, 20___, by and 
between the City of Mora, Minnesota, hereinafter referred to as the OWNER, and Short Elliott Hendrickson 
Inc.® (SEH), with a regular place of business at 3535 Vadnais Center Drive, St. Paul, Minnesota 55110, 
hereinafter referred to as the CONSULTANT. 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
That the OWNER and CONSULTANT, for the consideration hereinafter named, agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE DONE 
 
The OWNER agrees to and hereby does retain and employ CONSULTANT and CONSULTANT agrees to 

perform Architectural, Engineering and/or other Professional Services for the project at the Mora Municipal 

Airport, entitled: 

2023 Fuel System Rehabilitation 

hereinafter referred to as the Project. 
 
The Project and those services to be performed hereunder are more particularly described in ATTACHMENT 
A, a part hereof, and may be financed in part by grant-in-aid programs of the Minnesota Department of 
Transportation (Mn/DOT), Office of Aeronautics, and/or the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) as 
described in Article 14. 
 
ARTICLE 2. PERIOD OF SERVICE 
 
Compensation for CONSULTANT’S services as provided elsewhere in this Agreement has been agreed to in 
anticipation of an orderly and continuous progress of CONSULTANT’S services through completion. In this 
regard, if the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within 12 months of the date 
hereof, through no fault of CONSULTANT, any lump sum or maximum payment amounts shall be equitably 
adjusted. 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ARTICLE 3. COMPENSATION TO CONSULTANT 
 
A. Compensation to CONSULTANT for services described in this Agreement shall be on a Lump Sum 

basis, Cost Reimbursement Plus Fixed Fee basis and/or an Hourly Rate basis, as designated in the 
box below, and in ATTACHMENT B and as hereinafter described. 

 1. A Lump Sum method of payment for CONSULTANT’S services shall typically apply to all or 

parts of a work scope here CONSULTANT’S tasks can be readily defined and/or where the 
level of effort required to accomplish such tasks can be estimated with a reasonable degree 
of accuracy. The OWNER shall make monthly payments to CONSULTANT within 30 
calendar days of date of invoice based on an estimated percentage of completion of 
CONSULTANT’S services. 

  Reimbursement for Direct Expenses incurred in the performance of the work shall be 
included in the Lump Sum amount, unless otherwise set forth in ATTACHMENT B. 

 2. A Cost Reimbursement Plus Fixed Fee method of payment for CONSULTANT’S services 
shall typically apply to all or parts of work scope where CONSULTANT’S tasks cannot be 
readily defined and/or where the level of effort required to accomplish such tasks cannot be 
established with any reasonable degree of accuracy. Under a Cost Reimbursement Plus 
Fixed Fee method of payment, the CONSULTANT shall be paid for the actual costs of 
providing required services plus a fixed fee payment as defined in FAA Advisory Circular 
150/5100-14B, dated November 21, 1988, and as further defined as follows: 

  a. Direct Salary Costs incurred by CONSULTANT for employee’s time directly chargeable 
to the Project, and in accordance with the CONSULTANT’S SALARY SCHEDULE 
included in ATTACHMENT B. Periodic revisions to the schedule may be made and any 
such revisions shall be submitted by CONSULTANT to the OWNER for approval. 

  b. Overhead Costs including overhead on direct labor including, but not limited to, 
employment taxes, fringe benefits, holidays, vacation, and sick leave and all allowable 
general and administrative overhead costs. Overhead Costs shall be calculated as a 
percentage of Direct Salary Costs, with such percentage based on CONSULTAT’S 
audited records. The Overhead Rate to be applied to this Agreement and any special 
provisions relating thereto shall be set forth in ATTACHMENT B. 

  c. Direct Non-Salary Expenses incurred by CONSULTANT for costs directly chargeable to 

the project, including but not limited to: 

   1) Travel and subsistence. 

   2) Computer services. 

   3) Outside professional and technical services. 

   4) Identifiable reproduction and reprographic charges. 

   5) Expendable field supplies and special field equipment rental. 

   6) Other acceptable costs for such additional items and services as may be 

required by the OWNER to fulfill the terms of this Agreement. 

  d. Fixed Fee. In addition to the above reimbursement of costs, CONSULTANT shall be 

paid a fixed fee in the amount set forth in Attachment B. It is agreed that the fixed fee 
will be subject to adjustment in case of a work scope change, abandonment of the work 
prior to completion, or deletion of specific tasks. 



 3 

The OWNER shall make monthly payments to CONSULTANT within 30 calendar days of date of 
invoice based on computations made in accordance with the above charges for services provided 
and expenses incurred to date, including a proportionate amount of the fixed fee. Invoices shall be 
accompanied by supporting evidence as required. 

 3. If no Federal funds are involved in this Agreement, an Hourly Rate method of payment for 
CONSULTANT’S services may be utilized as an alternative to the Lump Sum or Cost 
Reimbursement Plus Fixed Fee methods. Under an Hourly Rate method of payment, 
CONSULTANT shall be paid for the actual hours worked on the Project by CONSULTANT’S 
technical personnel times an hourly billing rate established for each employee. Hourly billing 
rates shall include compensation for all salary costs, payroll burden, general and administrative 
overhead and professional fee. A rate schedule shall be furnished by CONSULTANT to 
OWNER upon request. 

  In addition to the foregoing, CONSULTANT shall be reimbursed at cost for the following Direct 

Expenses when incurred in the performance of the work: 

  a. Travel and subsistence. 

  b. Computer services. 

  c. Owner approved outside professional and technical services. 

  d. Identifiable reproduction and reprographic charges. 

  e. Expendable field supplies and special field equipment rental. 

  f. Other acceptable costs for such additional items and services as may be required by 

the Owner to fulfill the terms of this Agreement. 

  The OWNER shall make monthly payments to CONSULTANT within 30 calendar days of date 

of invoice based on computations made in accordance with the above charges for services 
provided and expenses incurred to date, accompanied by support evidence as required. 

 
B. The OWNER, The Mn/DOT, Office of Aeronautics, the FAA, or their authorized representatives shall 

have access to CONSULTANT’S records for the purpose of accounting and audit. The 
CONSULTANT shall maintain all records relative to this Agreement for a period of not less than three 
years, subsequent to the OWNER’S final payment to CONSULTANT and until the project is 
financially closed-out by the FAA. 

 
ARTICLE 4. EXTRA WORK AND SERVICES NOT INCLUDED IN THIS CONTRACT 
 
If CONSULTANT is of the opinion that any services it has been directed to perform is beyond the Scope of 
this Agreement, or that the level of effort required significantly exceeds that estimated due to changed 
conditions and thereby constitutes extra work, it shall promptly notify the OWNER of that fact. Extra work, 
additional compensation for same, and extension of time for completion shall be covered by a Supplemental 
Agreement entered into by both parties and approved by Mn/DOT and FAA, prior to proceeding with any extra 
work or related expenditures. 
 
ARTICLE 5. ABANDONMENT, CHANGE OF PLAN AND TERMINATION 
 
Either Party has the right to terminate this Agreement upon seven calendar days’ written notice. In addition, 
the OWNER may at any time, reduce the scope of this Agreement. Such reduction in scope shall be set forth 
in a written notice from the OWNER to CONSULTANT. In the event of unresolved dispute over change in 
scope or changed conditions, this Agreement may also be terminated, upon seven calendar days’ written 
notice as provided above. 



 4 

 
In the event of termination, all documents finished or unfinished, prepared by CONSULTANT under this 
Agreement shall be made available by CONSULTANT to the OWNER pursuant to Article 7, and there shall be 
no further obligation of the OWNER to CONSULTANT under this Agreement, except for payment of amounts 
due and owing for work performed and expenses incurred to the date and time of termination, computed in 
accordance with Article 3. 
 
In the event of a reduction in scope of the Project work, CONSULTANT shall be paid for the work performed 
and expenses incurred on the project work thus reduced and for any completed and abandoned work for 
which payment has not been made, computed in accordance with Article 3. 
 
ARTICLE 6. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
In the event of an irreconcilable dispute under this Agreement, which is not resolvable through informal 
means, the parties may, upon written agreement, submit to the resolution process set out in this provision. 
Once the parties have agreed to the resolution process, each party shall have seven (7) calendar days to 
designate one representative, who shall have authority to act on this Agreement. If either party fails within that 
time to inform the other party in writing of its designation, the other party is free to pursue all other legal and 
equitable remedies. Within ten (10) calendar days of designation of the representative, the representatives 
shall meet and shall entertain such presentation of testimony and other evidence as the CONSULTANT and 
the OWNER may wish to present with respect to the dispute. Within seven (7) calendar days after the close of 
such presentation, the representative shall resolve the dispute or either party is free to pursue all other legal 
and equitable remedies. When the representatives resolve the dispute, their decision shall be final and 
conclusive. Should the representatives be unable to agree on a resolution of the dispute, then the parties are 
free to pursue all other legal and equitable remedies. Each party’s costs for the dispute resolution shall be 
borne by the respective party. 
 
If the parties do not agree in writing to the resolution process set out above, either party is entitled to pursue 
any other legal or equitable remedies available. 
 
ARTICLE 7. DISPOSITION OF PLANS, REPORTS, AND OTHER DATA 
 
At the time of completion or termination of the work, CONSULTANT shall make available to the OWNER, all 
maps, tracings, reports, resource materials and other documents pertaining to the work or to the Project. All 
such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by the OWNER or others on 
extension of the Project or any other project. Any reuse without written verification or adaptation by 
CONSULTANT for the specific purpose intended will be at OWNER’S sole risk and without liability or legal 
exposure to CONSULTANT. In this regard, the OWNER will indemnify and hold harmless CONSULTANT 
from any and all suits or claims of third parties arising out of such reuse, which is not specifically verified, 
adapted or authorized by CONSULTANT. 
 
ARTICLE 8. DOCUMENTS FORMING THE CONTRACT 
 
The contract documents shall be deemed to include this Agreement with all accompanying attachments of 
part hereof. 
 
ARTICLE 9. OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITY 
 
A. To permit CONSULTANT to perform the services required hereunder, the OWNER shall supply in 

proper time and sequence, the following at no expense to CONSULTANT. 
 
 1. Provide all necessary information regarding its requirements as necessary for orderly progress 

of the work. 
 



 5 

 2. Designate in writing, a person to act as OWNER’S representative with respect to the services 
to be rendered under this Agreement. Such person shall have authority to transmit 
instructions, receive instructions, receive information, interpret, and define OWNER’S policies 
with respect to CONSULTANT’S services. 

 
 3. Furnish, as required for performance of CONSULTANT’S services (except to the extent 

provided otherwise in ATTACHMENT A), data prepared by or services of others, including 
without limitation, core borings, probings and subsurface explorations, hydrographic and 
geohydrologic surveys, laboratory tests and inspections of samples, materials and equipment; 
appropriate professional interpretations of all of the foregoing; environmental assessment and 
impact statements; property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, topographic and utility 
surveys; property descriptions; zoning, deed and other land use restriction; and other special 
data not covered in ATTACHMENT A. 

 
 4. Provide access to, and make all provisions for CONSULTANT to enter upon publicly- and 

privately-owned property as required to perform the work. 
 
 5. Act as liaison with other agencies to carry out necessary coordination and negotiations; furnish 

approvals and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project 
and such approvals and consents from others as may be necessary for completion of the 
Project. 

 
 6. Examine all reports, sketches, drawings, specifications and other documents prepared and 

presented by CONSULTANT, obtain advice of an attorney, insurance counselor or others as 
OWNER deems necessary for such examination and render in writing, decisions pertaining 
thereto within a reasonable time so as not to delay the services of CONSULTANT. 

 
 7. Give prompt written notice to CONSULTANT whenever OWNER observes or otherwise 

becomes aware of any development that affects the scope or timing of CONSULTANT’S 
services or any defect in the work of Construction Contractor(s), Consultants or 
CONSULTANT. 

 
 8. Initiate action, where appropriate, to identify and investigate the nature and extent of asbestos 

and/or pollutant in the Project and to abate and/or remove the same as may be required by 
federal, state or local statute, ordinance, code, rule, or regulation now existing or hereinafter 
enacted or amended. For purposes of these General Provisions, “pollution” shall mean any 
solid, liquid, gaseous, or thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke, vapor, soot, alkalis, 
chemicals and hazardous or toxic waste. Hazardous or toxic waste means any substance, 
waste, pollutant or contaminant now or hereafter included within such terms under any federal, 
state or local statute, ordinance, code, rule or regulation now existing or hereinafter enacted or 
amended. 

 
  If CONSULTANT encounters, or reasonably suspects that it has encountered, asbestos, or 

pollution, including soil contamination in the project area, CONSULTANT shall cease activity in 
said area and promptly notify the OWNER who shall proceed as set forth above. Unless 
otherwise specifically provided in ATTACHMENT A, the services to be provided by 
CONSULTANT do not include identification of asbestos or pollution, including soil 
contamination and CONSULTANT has no duty to identify or attempt to identify the same in the 
project area. 

 
 9. Provide such accounting, independent cost estimating and insurance counseling services as 

may be required for the Project, such legal services as OWNER may require or 
CONSULTANT may reasonably request with regard to legal issues pertaining to the Project 
and such auditing services as OWNER may require to ascertain how or for what purpose any 
Contractor has used the monies paid under the construction contract. 

 



 6 

 10. Provide such inspection services (except to the extent provided otherwise in ATTACHMENT 
A) as OWNER may require to ascertain that Contractor (s) are complying with any law, rule, 
regulation, ordinance, code or order applicable to their furnishing and performing the work. 

 
 11. Provide “record” drawings and specifications for all existing physical plants or facilities which 

are pertinent to the Project. 
 
 12. Provide written notice to CONSULTANT when the project has been financially closed-out by 

FAA. 
 
 13. Provide other services, materials, or data as may be set forth in ATTACHMENT A. 
 
B. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of information or services 

furnished by the OWNER. If CONSULTANT finds that any information or services furnished by the 
OWNER is in error or is inadequate for its purpose, CONSULTANT shall promptly notify the OWNER. 

 
ARTICLE 10. OPINIONS OF COST 
 
Opinions of probable project cost, construction cost, financial evaluations, feasibility studies, economic 
analyses of alternate solutions and utilitarian considerations of operations and maintenance costs provided for 
in ATTACHMENT A, a part hereof, are to be made on the basis of CONSULTANT’S experience and 
qualifications and represent CONSULTANT’S best judgement as an experienced and qualified design 
professional. It is recognized, however, that CONSULTANT does not have control over the cost of labor, 
material, equipment or services furnished by others or over market conditions or contractor’s methods of 
determining their prices, and that any evaluation of any facility to be constructed or reacquired, or work to be 
performed on the basis of CONSULTANT’S cost opinions, must of necessity, be speculative until completion 
of construction or acquisition. Accordingly, CONSULTANT cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, 
bids, or actual costs will not substantially vary from opinions, evaluations or studies submitted by 
CONSULTANT to OWNER hereunder. 
 
ARTICLE 11. CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
 
OWNER acknowledges that it is customary for the architect or engineer who is responsible for the preparation 
and furnishing of Drawings and Specifications and other construction-related documents to be employed to 
provide professional services during the Bidding and Construction Phases of the Project, (1) to interpret and 
clarify the documentation so furnished and to modify the same as circumstances revealed during bidding and 
construction may dictate, (2) in connection with acceptance of substitute or equal items of materials and 
equipment proposed by bidders and contractor(s), (3) in connection with approval of shop drawings and same 
submittals, and (4) as a result of and in response to CONSULTANT’S detecting in advance of performance of 
affected work inconsistencies or irregularities in such documentation. OWNER agrees that if CONSULTANT 
is not employed to provide such professional services during the Bidding (if the work is put out for bids) and 
the Construction Phases of the Project, CONSULTANT will not be responsible for, and OWNER shall 
indemnify and hold CONSULTANT (and CONSULTANT’S professional associates and consultants) harmless 
from, all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorneys’ fees arising out of, or resulting from, any 
interpretation, clarification, substitution acceptance, shop drawing or sample approval or modification of such 
documentation issued or carried out by OWNER or others. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be 
construed to release CONSULTANT (or CONSULTANT’S professional associates or consultants) from 
liability for failure to perform in accordance with professional standards any duty or responsibility which 
CONSULTANT has undertaken or assumed under this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 12. INSURANCE 
 
CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain insurance for protection from claims against it under workers’ 
compensation acts, claims for damages because of bodily injury including personal injury, sickness or disease 
or death of any and all employees or of any person other than such employees, and from claims for damages 
against it because of injury to or destruction of property including loss of use resulting therefrom. 
 



 7 

Also, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain professional liability insurance for protection from claims 
arising out of performance of professional services caused by any negligent act, error, or omission for which 
CONSULTANT is legally liable. However, CONSULTANT hereby states and the OWNER acknowledges, that 
CONSULTANT has no professional liability (errors and omissions) or other insurance, and is unable to 
reasonably obtain such insurance, for claims arising out of the performance or failure to perform professional 
services, including but not limited to the preparation of reports, designs, drawings and specifications, related 
to the investigation, detection, abatement, replacement, modification, removal or disposal of (1) pollutants or 
of (2) products, materials or processes containing asbestos. Pollutants herein under (1) above meaning any 
solid, liquid, gaseous, or thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke, vapor, soot, alkalis, chemicals and 
hazardous or toxic waste. Accordingly, the OWNER hereby agrees to bring no claim for non-negligent 
services, breach of contract, or other cause of action against CONSULTANT, its principals, employees, 
agents and consultants if such claim in any way arises out of the actual, alleged or threatened discharge, 
dispersal, release or escape of pollutants, or the investigation of or remedial work related to such pollutants or 
asbestos in the project. Certificates of insurance will be provided to the OWNER upon request. 
 
ARTICLE 13. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
The CONSULTANT in performance of work hereunder operates as an independent contractor and covenants 
and agrees that it will conduct itself consistent with such status, that is will neither hold itself out as nor claim 
to be an officer or employee of the OWNER by reason hereof, and that it will not by reason hereby, make any 
claim, demand or shall it apply for any right or privilege applicable to an officer or employee of the OWNER, 
including, but not limited to, worker’s compensation coverage, unemployment insurance benefits, social 
security coverage or retirement membership or credit. 
 
ARTICLE 14. FEDERAL AND STATE PARTICIPATION 
 
Work performed under this Agreement may be financed in part by State and Federal funds. However, 
payments to CONSULTANT will be made by the OWNER. 
 
The State of Minnesota and the United States are not parties to this Contract and no reference herein to the 
Mn/DOT, Office of Aeronautics, and to the FAA or any representatives thereof makes the State of Minnesota 
or the United States a party to the Contract. 
 
ARTICLE 15. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES 
 
The CONSULTANT warrants that no person or legal entity has been employed or retained to solicit or secure 
this contract upon an Agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee excepting bona-fide employees or bona-fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by 
CONSULTANT for the purpose of securing business. For breach or violation of this warranty, the OWNER 
shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or in its discretion to deduct from payment to 
CONSULTANT the full amount of each commission, percentages, brokerage, or contingent fee. 
 
ARTICLE 16. FEDERAL CONTRACT CLAUSES 
 
If this Agreement is to be financed in part by Federal funds, certain federally-required, contract clauses must 
be incorporated. These federally-required, contract clauses, included as ATTACHMENT C, are hereby 
incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement. The ATTACHMENT C incorporated is for Non-
Construction Contract of (check as appropriate): 
 
 ( x )  $10,000 or less 

 (  )  $10,001 to $25,000 

 (  )  $25,001 to $100,000 or 

 (   )  $100,001 and over 

 
The term “contractor” as used in said ATTACHMENT is understood to mean CONSULTANT. 
 



 8 

ARTICLE 17. ASSIGNMENT 
 
This Agreement, being intended to secure the personal service of the individuals employed by and through 
whom CONSULTANT performs work hereunder, shall not be assigned, sublet or transferred without written 
consent of the OWNER. 



 9 

ARTICLE 18. NOTICES 
 
All notices required by law or by this Agreement to be given to the CONSULTANT must be written and may 
be given personally or by depositing the same in the United States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to 
CONSULTANT at such premises and at the following address: 
 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. 
3535 Vadnais Center Drive 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55110 

 
All notices required or permitted to be given to the OWNER hereunder shall be given by United States mail, 
postage prepaid, and addressed to: 
 

 
Glenn Anderson 

City Administrator 
101 Lake Street South 
Mora, Minnesota 55051 

 
Notice shall be deemed given as of the date said notice is deposited in the mail or personally delivered. 
 
The parties must notify each other promptly in the event of a change in name or address. 
 
ARTICLE 19. CONTROLLING LAW 
 
This Agreement is to be governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota. 
 

 

ARTICLE 20. SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first above 
written. 
 

City of Mora, MN 

 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. 

OWNER  CONSULTANT 

     

By   By  

     

Attest    

 
 
 
Attachments: A, B 
 



 

 A-1 

Attachment A 
Project Scope and Scope of Engineering Services  

2023 Fuel System Rehabilitation 
Mora Municipal Airport 

Mora, Minnesota 
 

 

Project Description and Scope 

 
The project consists of rehabilitating the fuel system at the Mora Municipal Airport.  The fuel 
tanks were inspected and are in need of repairs and replacement of the piping, sumps and 
sensors, and manway over the Jet A tank.   
 

Scope of Engineering Services 

 
The Scope of Engineering Services is itemized below.  The coordination and contractor 
selection will meet all requirements of the Minnesota Department of Transportation (Office of 
Aeronautics).   

The Consultant will provide the following specific services: 

Repair Coordination and Grant Acquisition: 

1. Project Formulation:  SEH will complete initial project research, coordination with 
contractors, coordination with MnDOT for state grant funding, and grant application.  
 

2. Quotation Coordination:  SEH will coordinate with two qualified fuel system repair 
companies to inspect the fuel tanks and develop appropriate scopes of work for Mora 
to consider.  The quotation packages received by the City will be the basis for the 
state grant application. 

 

3. Contract Award Recommendation: Provide support to the City during the quoting and 
award process.  Specific services include qualifying received work scopes, 
recommending award, and assisting with contract development between the City and 
the successful quoter.  This task also includes assistance with the MnDOT grant 
application and submittal of required grant documentation. 

 

4. Project Management:  Overall administration of the project, including internal and 
external meetings, coordination of plan and specification review with the Owner, 
MnDOT Office of Aeronautics, and other regulatory agencies as required. 

 
 
Construction Observation, Administration, and Project Closeout: 

1. Preconstruction Activities:  Preconstruction coordination will be held prior to 
beginning construction to outline and discuss project requirements, administration 
procedures, and other construction related information.  SEH will document the 
coordination, issue notifications, and record meeting minutes as necessary. 
 
 



 

 A-2 

2. Pay Estimates: Actual completed quantities will be tabulated for use in preparing pay 
estimates.  It is anticipated that two pay applications will be processed and presented 
to the City Council. 
 

3. Record Drawings.  SEH will coordinate with the contractor for as-built conditions and 
a record of work completed. 

 
4. Project Management:  Overall administration of the construction phase of the project, 

including internal and external meetings, project oversight, and coordination and 
communication with the Sponsor, MnDOT, and the FAA. 

 
Not Included in Scope of Service: 
 

1. Construction Observation / Final Inspection:  SEH will provide limited daily 
construction observation for this project.  SEH will generally follow construction 
progress through the project management task, but daily observations and final 
inspection are not included.   

 



Task 

No. Task Description

Project 

Manager

Project 

Engineer

Senior 

Technician

Admin 

Technician

1. Project Formulation 4

2. Quotation Coordination 12

3. Contract Award Recommendation 2

4. Project Management 1 4

1. Preconstruction Activities 6

2. Pay Estimates 6

3. Record Drawings 8 4

4. Project Management 2 2 2

Total hours per labor category 3 44 4 2

ESTIMATE OF LABOR COSTS:

Hours Rate Extension

3 $73.47 $220.41

Project Engineer 44 $47.90 2,107.60$  

Senior Technician 4 $44.35 177.40$     

2 $32.45 64.90$       

Total Direct Labor Costs: 53              $2,570.31

Direct Salary Costs plus Overhead (72%) $4,420.93

Total Labor Costs $6,991.24

Fixed Fee on Labor Costs (15%) 1,048.69$  

ESTIMATE OF EXPENSES:

Direct Expenses Quantity Rate Extension

Employee Mileage 200 $0.65 $130.00

Equipment Usage 53 $5.80 $307.40

Total Expenses $437.40

SUMMARY:

Total Labor Costs +Fees +  Expenses $8,477.33

Total $8,477.33

Estimated Total $8,500.00

Admin Technician

Project Manager

Repair Coordination and Grant Acquisition

Construction Observation, Administration, and Project Closeout

ESTIMATED FEES AND EXPENSES

ATTACHMENT B

2023 Fuel System Rehabilitation

Mora Municipal Airport

Mora, Minnesota

Labor Category



Item No. 9a 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date  April 18, 2023 
To  Mayor and City Council 
From  Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 

RE 
  Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director
 Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office Contract Budget Review Committee 

SUMMARY 
The Council will appoint a councilmember to the oversight committee in response to the 2023 Kanabec 
County Sheriff’s Office Contract and annual review of contract and budget. 

BACKGROUND 
In December 2009 the City of Mora entered in a contracted services for Law Enforcement with Kanabec 
County Sheriff’s Office to provide police protection within the corporate limits of the City. 

In November 2023, Kanabec County and Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office held a work session to review the 
Law Enforcement Contract with the City of Mora to update the contract which was revised on December 20, 
2022.  

22. ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTRACT AND BUDGET.  All parties to this Agreement agree to the 
necessity of continual communications between all of the parties and therefore jointly establish a 
committee to ensure proper administration of this Agreement. The committee shall consist of one 
county commissioner, one city council member, the sheriff or designee, and the City Administrator.
Said committee shall meet annually in April and at other times as called by any of the committee
members.

RECOMMENDATIONS 

MOTION to appoint Councilmember ______________________________as the Kanabec County Sheriff’s 
Office Contract and Budget review committee. 



































Item No. 9b 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date  April 18, 2023 
To  Mayor and City Council 
From  Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 

RE 
  Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director 
  Driver’s License Committee Follow-up  

SUMMARY 
The Driver’s License Committee provide an update to the Council on the City and Kanabec County’s 
findings for the Driver’s License Operation and Motor Vehicle Office. 



Item No. 9c 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date  April 18, 2023 
To  Mayor and City Council 
From  Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 

RE 
  Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director            
9th street Highway 65 Update - SEH

SUMMARY 

Greg Anderson will provide an update to the Council on the 9th Street Highway 65 Turn Lane and the 
MnDOT Local partnership program.



[Type text] 
 

 
March 2023 

 
During the month of March, 2023 Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office contract cars responded to 491 calls for 
service within the City of Mora. The most frequent calls for service were Medical Emergencies (73), Traffic 
complaints/violations (88), and 911 open or abandoned lines (33) 
 
 
 
Contract deputies received continuing education/training in the following areas: 
 

- Firearms Rifle/Handgun 
- Cold Water Rescue 
- Tactical Building Searches 
- High school walkthrough/familiarization  
 
 

No community events required deputy’s attendance. 
 
 
 
 
 
The Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office continues to proudly serve the citizens of Mora within Kanabec County. 
The Sheriff’s Office encourages any and all community members to contact our office with any questions, 
comments, or concerns. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sergeant Dylan VanGorden  #3104 
 
 



Printed On: 04/06/23 12:22CAD Summary Report

Kanabec County Sheriff's Office

03/23 Total

911 Hang-ups-Abandoned-Open 
Line

33 33

Agency Assist 12 12

Alarms All (Home, Business, Bank, 
misc)

7 7

Animal-All Other 8 8

Assault 1 1

Burglary 2 2

Child Custody Issues 2 2

Civil Assist 13 13

Crim Sex 2 2

Disorderly Conduct 7 7

Domestic Disturbance/Assaults 3 3

Drug calls - All 1 1

DTP 7 7

Escorts-Funerals, Races, etc 3 3

Fire- Mora Area Fire Calls 4 4

Fires - All Others 3 3

Foot Patrol 2 2

Found - animals, property, etc 2 2

Fraud 3 3

Harassing communications calls 1 1

Health and Safety 1 1

Hospice Deaths 3 3

Information and misc calls 18 18

Juvenile calls excluding tobacco, 
drugs, alcohol

3 3

Juvenile Tobacco complaints 6 6

Maltreatment 18 18

Medical Emergency 73 73

Meetings and Presentations 1 1

ProPhoenix rev. 05/09/2018 ** Confidential - Unauthorized Use Prohibited ** 1 of 2

30

30



Printed On: 04/06/23 12:22CAD Summary Report

03/23 Total

Missing Person(s) 1 1

Neighborhood Disputes 2 2

Noise - including loud music, parties, 
etc

1 1

Parking Violations 1 1

Public assist calls 5 5

Records checks 5 5

Scams 1 1

Secure Helipad 10 10

Shooting complaints 1 1

Shoplifting complaints 1 1

Snowbird Parking 6 6

Stolen 1 1

Stop arm violations 1 1

Suicide threats-attempts 3 3

Suspicious- persons, vehicles, and 
occurrences

18 18

Theft-not vehicle 10 10

Threats 4 4

Traffic / Driving complaints 3 3

Traffic Accident 8 8

Traffic Violation 7 7

Unwanted person 5 5

Vehicle off Road 2 2

Violation of Court Order 1 1

Warrant Entry and Arrests 4 4

Weather - Monthly Test 1 1

Welfare Check 16 16

Total 357 357

ProPhoenix rev. 05/09/2018 ** Confidential - Unauthorized Use Prohibited ** 2 of 2

3

3

29

29

10

10

11

11

78

78

491



DRAFT

Park Board – 01/10/2023 Page 1 of 2 

City of Mora, MN 
PARK BOARD 

Meeting Minutes 

April 11, 2023 

Present: Steven Holcombe, Alison Holland, Sam Pioske, Curt Sammann, Kyle Shepard 
Absent: None 
Staff Present: Joe Kohlgraf, Jeff Krie, Glenn Anderson 
Others Present: None 

1. Call to Order.  Chair Pioske called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

2. Roll Call.   All present.

3. Adopt Agenda. Motion by Holland, second by Shepard to adopt the April 11, 2023 meeting 
agenda as presented. All present voted aye.  Motion carried.

4. Minutes.  Motion by Shepard, second by Holcombe to approve the January 10, 2023 meeting
minutes as presented. All present voted aye. Motion carried.

5. Open Forum. No one showed up to speak at the open forum.

6. Fall Fest. The board discussed the Fall Fest event detail sheet and shared ideas on Activities, 
Food Trucks, Donations, and Marketing. Overall a great discussion and many ideas were shared.
The group decided that a walking magician was the way to go.  Kids are too busy for stage acts
and people love the interaction.  Sheppard suggested another option is using a DJ or sound
system that played kids music and kids could dance on the stage during the event.  Holland and
Krie shared some possible groups that might be willing to assist in Fall Fest. Anderson shared
the possibility of reaching out to the Fire Department and Police to see if they would be
interested in attending Fall Fest. It was brought up to either get rid of the inflatable activity or 
have better supervision to limit any accidents.  Krie suggested that he could bring to the next
meeting some activities the board could consider. Sheppard and Holland shared ideas on
getting more volunteers at the event.  Holland also suggestion using the school to distribute the
event poster.  Sheppard felt that last year was the best year yet and hoping that the event
continues to grow.  The board tabled it for Krie to follow up on the different shared ideas and
discuss results.

7. Reports.
a. Holcombe: None
b. Holland: None
c. Pioske: Heard Pickleball group may attend a park board meeting on possibility of putting

a pickleball court on JC ballfields.  Anderson responded with an idea of the possibility of
raising funds for projects.



DRAFT

Park Board – 01/10/2023  Page 2 of 2 

d. Sammann: Questions were answered during reports on Dog Park and Fox Run proposed 
park.   

e. Sheppard: Was asked by a person to have Keystone Park open during the winter for 
snowshoeing.       

f. Kohlgraf: Getting spring equipment ready.  Slowly opening parks up as snow melts and 
checking everything.  Doing monthly checks on parks.  Skate Park open this week.  
Basketball courts and tennis/pickleball court are open.  Trying some different options 
for the surface entry of the dog park to make more stable and less messy.  Bike trails 
working on east side of highway to clean off.  Park Board may want to look at play 
equipment in Library Park for replacement or update equipment in the future.  Hear any 
concerns on anything to let Kohlgraf or Krie know.   

g. Krie: Hiring is going good for the MAC.  City of Mora was granted a grant from ECRAC for 
Mora’s Music in the Park.  Krie asked for volunteers to do curtain speech and hand out 
survey.  Submitted a grant to the DNR for a proposed park in Fox Run development.   

8. Adjournment.  Motion by Sheppard, second by Holcombe to adjourn the meeting. All present 
voted aye.  Meeting adjourned at 6:52p.m. 

 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
Sam Pioske, Chair                                                               Jeff Krie, Secretary 



City of Mora Economic Development Authority 
Minutes 

2:00 p.m. Tuesday, March 7, 2023 
Mora City Hall, 101 Lake St. S, Mora, MN 

 

1 
 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Dan Johnson called to order the regular meeting of the 
EDA at 2:00 p.m., on Tuesday, March 7, 2023, in the Mora City Hall council chambers.  

2. Roll Call: Present: Jody Anderson, David Youngquist, Dan Johnson, Alison Holland, Mike 
Segner, Rose Krie, Brett Baldwin, Robert Jensen 

 Absent: None 

Staff Present: City Administrator Glenn Anderson, Community Development 
Director Kirsten Faurie, Administrative Services Director Natasha Segelstrom 

Others Present: Kanabec County EDA Director Jim Hartshorn 

3. Adopt Agenda: MOTION made by Segner, seconded by Baldwin, and unanimously carried to 
adopt the agenda. 

4. Special Business:  

a. Industrial Park Proposal 

Faurie informed the EDA members the City of Mora received a proposal from Nick 
Mitchell requesting to purchase a 4.84 acre lot in the Mora Industrial Park, Lot 5 Block 1. 
Mitchell is in the process of purchasing the Mora Marine business, but not the land and 
building. Mitchell is looking to construct a new building in the Industrial Park roughly 
40x100 and use the rest of the lot for outdoor boat storage. The building would be split 
between a service garage and a showroom to sell new and used boats.  

Mitchell is offering $50,000. Faurie explained the city’s Business Subsidy Policy 
establishes a guideline of $12,500 per acre. The EDA will need to discuss and decide if 
they are willing deviate from those guidelines to accept the $50,000 offer.  

The Business Subsidy Policy also establishes a guideline that businesses purchasing a lot 
in the Industrial Park must construct a building covering a minimum of 5.75% of the lot. 
Mitchell’s proposal falls short, covering 1.9% of the lot. The EDA will need to consider if 
they are willing deviate from the guidelines and accept this building size.  

Hartshorn shared with the EDA his review of Mitchell’s business plan found it to be a 
solid, reasonable plan. Hartshorn said he liked that the business is already functioning 
and profitable and has the potential to grow. Hartshorn said Mitchell’s financing options 
could include applying to the City or the ECRDC for their revolving economic 
development loan funds.  

 



City of Mora Economic Development Authority 
Minutes 

2:00 p.m. Tuesday, March 7, 2023 
Mora City Hall, 101 Lake St. S, Mora, MN 

 

2 
 

The EDA discussed pros and cons of the sale as well as some of their concerns.  

J. Anderson expressed concern about if the business type suited the allowable uses in 
the Industrial Park, and that perhaps more suitable locations could be found outside of 
the city.  

Faurie discussed the allowable uses in the Industrial Park and the decision of whether or 
not boat sales as a part of Mitchell’s business would be the role of the Planning 
Commission to decide.  

Johnson commented on the other businesses in the Industrial Park and the extent that 
many of them have outdoor storage.  

J. Anderson expressed concern that allowing a smaller building to be constructed also 
means less tax revenue for the city.  

Youngquist questioned if the sale would encourage job growth.  

Faurie acknowledged the business plan does not include much job growth, but would 
retain the existing jobs with the potential to grow 2-6 FTE jobs.  

G. Anderson noted cities like Mora can struggle to find perfect fits for the Industrial 
Park, and that the goal is to fill the lots that are available; it may be worth making some 
exceptions to achieve that goal.  

J. Anderson questioned if making exceptions would be fair to the other businesses that 
followed the guidelines.  

Discussion continued regarding building size, building placement and potential for 
future expansion.  

Krie noted that this type of business is needed in the area. She also wondered about 
how much interest there has been from people wanting to buy Industrial Park lots.  

Segner noted that the business shows promise and that it would be good to have more 
activity in the Industrial Park.  

The board discussed making it a higher priority for the City to extend the road and 
utilities in the Industrial Park in order to make all of the land available for development.  

The group discussed the value of the land and what terms they would like to include in a 
purchase agreement. The EDA directed Faurie to work with the city attorney to draft a 
purchase agreement, and clarify what Mitchell meant by a “three-year tax moratorium” 
in his letter of intent. The group also discussed the timeline of the project and sale.  



City of Mora Economic Development Authority 
Minutes 

2:00 p.m. Tuesday, March 7, 2023 
Mora City Hall, 101 Lake St. S, Mora, MN 

 

3 
 

MOTION by Segner to move forward with the purchase at the proposed price of $50,000 
pending the creation of terms of purchase. Discussion continued regarding possible 
terms. Seconded by Jensen and approved unanimously.  

The EDA scheduled a Special Meeting to further review the purchase and terms for 10 
a.m. Friday, March 17, 2023 at Mora City Hall.  

5. Adjournment: MOTION by Baldwin, seconded by Jensen and unanimously carried to adjourn 
the meeting at 2:56 p.m. 

The next Meeting of the EDA is a special meeting for 10 a.m. Friday, March 17, 2023 at Mora 
City Hall.  

The next regular meeting of the EDA is 2 p.m. Tuesday, May 2, 2023. 

 

 

______________________________   _______________________________ 

Dan Johnson      Kirsten Faurie 

President      Community Development Director 

 



City of Mora Economic Development Authority 
Minutes 

10:00 a.m. Friday, March 17, 2023 
Mora City Hall, 101 Lake St. S, Mora, MN 

 

1 
 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Dan Johnson called to order the regular meeting of the 
EDA at 10:00 a.m., on Friday, March 17, 2023, in the Mora City Hall council chambers.  

2. Roll Call: Present: Jody Anderson, David Youngquist, Dan Johnson, Alison Holland, Mike 
Segner, Rose Krie, Robert Jensen 

 Absent: Brett Baldwin 

Staff Present: City Administrator Glenn Anderson, Community Development 
Director Kirsten Faurie 

Others Present: Nick Mitchell 

3. Adopt Agenda: MOTION made by Krie, seconded by Segner, and unanimously carried to 
adopt the agenda. 

4. Special Business:  

a. Industrial Park Proposal 

Faurie asked the EDA to review terms and discuss terms of the purchase agreement, and 
noted the Planning Commission will need to review and approve the use of boat sales in 
the I-2 District.  

J. Anderson noted concerns about deviating from guidelines regarding sale price and the 
smaller building’s lot coverage.  

Mitchell spoke about his business plan and how he intends to use the lot, specifying that 
the majority of his business would be boat repair/storage and that he does not foresee 
boat sales becoming the primary use. Mitchell sees a huge need for repair and storage 
services in the area.  

Jensen discussed the existing pontoon business in the Industrial Park and if their sales 
model was substantially different than what is being proposed for Mora Marine. Jensen 
said he wouldn’t feel comfortable denying Mitchell if Northstar Pontoons is conducting 
a similar business.  

Segner noted he wasn’t considering reversing the decision the EDA made at their March 
7 meeting to sell the lot. Krie reaffirmed this and her desire to keep this sale process 
moving forward to help Mitchell meet his timeline goals.  

The board discussed their desired terms of sale. The board debated requiring the 
business install some form of security system in the agreement; the board directed city 
staff to consult with the city attorney and advise on how that could be worded.  



City of Mora Economic Development Authority 
Minutes 

10:00 a.m. Friday, March 17, 2023 
Mora City Hall, 101 Lake St. S, Mora, MN 

 

2 
 

MOTION by Segner, seconded by Krie, to direct the city attorney to draft a purchase 
agreement including the terms listed in staff memo (in packet), specifying the fence 
needs to screen view all around the property (not just the front), adding the sale is 
contingent upon approval of the land use by the Planning Commission & City Council, 
and ask to attorney to advise on how a security feature might be worded.  

Motion failed 3-3 with members Jensen, Anderson and Youngquist opposed.  

Johnson opened the matter for further discussion. Per Jensen’s request, Faurie 
explained the process for selling Industrial Park Land and next steps in this matter.  

J. Anderson spoke again to her concerns about how far the proposal is deviating from 
the city’s established guidelines regarding sale price of land, building size and allowed 
uses.  

Jensen said the city has already set some precedence in what has been allowed at 
Northstar Pontoons. Jensen requested the city table the issue until the attorney could 
weigh in on the issues being discussed.  

Youngquist noted his concerns about deviating from the guidelines considering he did 
not see a strong public benefit to residents in terms of job creation and increase in the 
tax base. Johnson stated he saw the business was a benefit by providing a service to 
members of the community.  

Krie clarified that on March 7 this board did approve sale of the lot pending the 
development of terms and discouraged the board from backpedaling on that decision.  

MOTION by Jensen to table the issue until a special meeting of the EDA to be held at 
10:30 a.m. Tuesday, April 11, 2023 at Mora City Hall. Seconded by Youngquist and 
unanimously carried.   

5. Adjournment: MOTION by Segner, seconded by Krie and unanimously carried to adjourn the 
meeting at 11:08 a.m. 

The next meeting of the EDA is a special meeting for 10:30 a.m. Tuesday, April 11, 2023 at 
Mora City Hall. The next regular meeting of the EDA is 2 p.m. Tuesday, May 2, 2023. 

 

 

______________________________   _______________________________ 

Dan Johnson      Kirsten Faurie 
President      Community Development Director 


	Agenda 04182023
	City of Mora Kanabec County, Minnesota

	item 4a - 1 03212023 CC Meeting Minutes
	item 4b - 03212023 CC WS Meeting Minutes Draft
	item 4c - 1 March - April 2023 City Claims List
	Item 4d - 1 Staff Report Accept Donations
	item 4d - 2 Res 2023-421 Accepting Restricted Donations
	item 4e- 1 ECRAC Grant Award MITP Staff Report
	Date: April 18, 2023
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION

	item 4f - Mobile Food Unit Application
	item 6a - 1 HRA Update
	item 6b - 1 Professional Services - Civil Attorney Appointment Campbell Knutson
	item 6c - 1  2011A GO Bond Fund Transfer Staff Report
	item 6c - 2 - Resolution 2023-422 Approving Transfer of Monies to Future Improvement Fund
	item 8a - 1 Harrison Proprety Purchase Staff Memo
	item 8a - 2 Harrison Proprety Purchase - Letter
	item 8a - 3a Harrison Proprety Purchase  map
	item 8a - 3b Harrison Propety Purchase Map flood
	item 8a - 4 Harrison Proprety Purchase  Trail Plan_adopted July 20, 2021
	item 8b - 1 airport taxilane bid award 2023 april
	item 8b - 2 JMR Contract Award Memo_041223
	item 8c - 1 Memo- council aiport grand submital application april 2023
	item 8c - 2 2023 JMR Grant Request_Fuel System Submittal Request
	item 8d -1 Memo Cemetery 2023 fee addition
	item 8e - 1 Memo- council airport runway TEMP proposal 2023 april
	item 8e - 2 2023 JMR TEMP Contract Documents
	item 8f -1 Memo- council airport runway planning grant by SEH 2023 april
	item 8g - 1 Memo- council airport taxilane grant by SEH 2023 april
	item 8h -1 Memo- council aiport fuel contract service SEH april 2023
	item 8h -2 2023 Fuel System Rehab Contract Documents
	item 9a - 1 KCSO Contract - Council Committee Member Appointment
	item 9a - 2 Contract for Law Enforcement Services- Mora
	item 9b - 1 Driver's License Committee Follow-Up
	item 9c- 1 SEH Update 9th Street Hwy 65 Turn Lane
	item 10b - 1 KCSO - March report 2023
	Item 10b - 2 KCSO - March totals
	item 10d - 1 April 11, 2023 Park Board Meeting Minutes
	item 10e - 1 03072023 EDA minutes DRAFT
	item 10e - 2 03172023 EDA minutes DRAFT



